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PROCEEDINGS

THE COURT: You are Jasper Jerome Jefferson, sir?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: I have an indictment. The charges in
Aiken County on or about June 21st, 2016. [Indiscernible]
intent to possess and intent to distribute heroin. On your
arraignment on that charge, it appears that you wish to enter a
plea of guilty as a second offense. Is that correct sir?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Another indictment. Charges in Aiken
County on or about June 21st, 2016. You committed trafficking
methamphetamine by knowingly and intention of being in actual
or constructive possession of at least 400 grams of meth upon
your arraignment and offense that you wish to enter a plea of
guilty to trafficking 28 grams or more or less than 100 grams
as a second offense. 1Is that right sir?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Another indictment. Charges in Aiken
County on or about June 21st, 2016. You possessed with intend
to distribute cocaine, on your arraignment it appears you wish
to enter a plea of guilty as a third subsequent offense. Is
that correct?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And I have an indictment of charges in

Aiken County on or about June 21st, 2016. You being the father
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of a 9-year-old child named in the indictment, unlawfully
placed that child at unreasonable risk of harm affecting the
child's life, physical or mental health is alleged that you had
the child present in the vehicle with you transporting various
drugs. Upon your arraignment of that charge, it appears that
you wish to plead guilty to unlawful neglect of the child. Is
that correct?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Screen, you're going to do the
talking?

MR. SCREEN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you fully advised your client about
the nature and elements of the offense in each instance of
possible punishment and the constitutional rights, including
trial by jury?

MR. JEFFERSON: I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with the factual basis
for each plea?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you agree with his decision?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Jefferson, today, are you under the
influence of any medicine, drug, alcohol, or anything affecting
your thinking?

MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir.
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THE COURT: Do you have any physical or mental
problems that affect your thinking today?

MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: You're clearheaded, you know what you're
doing?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: When you plead guilty, you give up human
rights including your right to remain silent and your right to
a jury trial. Do you know that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: If you want a jury trial, you're presumed
to be innocent. The State has to prove you guilty beyond a
reasonable doubt to convict you. You get to see, hear and have
your lawyer cross-examine every witness against you. Do you
understand?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: By pleading guilty, you give up all those
rights. You give up any defenses you may have, you give up any
challenges to evidence and you admit that the charges are true.
Do you know all that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Do you want a jury trial on any of these
cases?

MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: I need you to listen to the solicitor
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plea.

MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Your Honor, may it please the
Court. On June 21st, 2016, Deputy Puckett and Deputy Bozark
[phonetic] Aiken County Sheriff's Office were running radar.
The location on Highway 19 here in Aiken County, they observed
vehicle that was speeding. Deputy Bozark got behind it to
initiating a traffic stop. He got the driver who was Mr.
Jasper Jefferson's wife. Out of the vehicle she was acting
very nervous.

Deputy Puckett pulled up shortly after the initial stop.

He is a canine deputy and Deputy Bozark indicated he wanted him
to go ahead and run the dog around the car based on the
driver's demeanor. He did do that, he got alerted by sitting
outside the driver's door while he was doing that. Deputy
Argine noticed that Mr. Jefferson, who was in the front
passenger seat, was extremely nervous to the point where he was
well -- he just noticed that he was very nervous and his
demeanor was also unusual.

So, the dog alerted. They did do a search vehicle in
a UPS mailing package in the passenger side floorboard where
Mr. Jefferson seated. They found a large quantity of what
appeared to be amphetamine, a pill bottle that contained three
small baggies and the dark white powder substance. Three small
baggies of a white powder substance along with digital scales

and quantity of United States currency. The items were sent




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

off to be tested and came back. Methamphetamine was positive
for methamphetamine, 574.46 grams. Cocaine was positive, 1.09
grams. Heroin was positive, 3.13 grams. When we started getting
this case ready and looking at it numerous years ago, we
discovered that Deputy Bozark's camera had rolled off the
system and was not preserved initially. Deputy -- and
additionally, Deputy Puckett's camera started well into the
traffic stop where all the necessary items or incidents had
already taken place off camera.

And this was before either deputy had been issued a
body-worn camera. So, we had some problems with that at the
very beginning of the case. Additionally, Mr. Jefferson did
make some incriminating statements on the scene. He had not
been advised of his Miranda rights, so we're not going to be
able to bring those in at trial.

His son was in the backseat of the car and both parents
were arrested on the scene for long conduct as well as these
drug charges. His case just kind of stayed in the back of my
roster because he was out on the line. However, then he was
rearrested in June of this year for driving the wrong way in
this highway and appeared to be under influence as well as
possessing what appear to be cocaine. Those charges will be a
no pause as a result of this plea.

We take the State's negotiations, this came up on our

1095 docket. We begin earnestly trying to resolve it in




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

addressing the issues that the case had. We made a negotiated
seven year offer for all these four charges to run
concurrently. If Your Honor will accept it, the law
enforcement is in support of the negotiation. This was -- we
were preparing this actually for a trial all last week. When
we went and reviewed the evidence, we realized that the EPS
mailer bag that was mentioned in the deputy's report actually
had Mr. Jefferson's name on it. So, that was another
incriminating factor that I think led him to ultimately take
this plea here today.

Your Honor, he does have a prior record in South Carolina
in 1990, conviction of possession of cocaine. The remainder of
all his convictions are federal convictions. In 1992,
narcotics and conspiracy, 1993, possession of cocaine with
intent to distribute. 1999, distribution of cocaine as well as
violation of supervised release and an additional conviction to
repeat with cocaine in 1999. Based on all the factors going
into the case since age, we ask that, Your Honor, accept the
negotiation and sentence him to a seven-year active sentence.

THE COURT: Do you admit you're guilty of these
charges, sir?

MR. JEFFERSON: Your Honor, yes. In '99, I was
incarcerated I couldn't have did that. It might have been my
brother -- the younger brother. That's the only one thing I

know about when I heard her say that but yes sir.
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THE COURT: The charges you're pleading today, are
you guilty of those?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Has anybody forced you, threatened you,
coerced you in any way to get you to enter these pleading
against your will?

MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: Any plea bargain the State might have
made with you, any agreement about dropping the charge,

reducing the charge, recommending the sentence, anything like

10

that? They have to tell me what it is on the record or you lose

what they have told me, you understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Screen, are all the plea agreements
on the record?

MR. SCREEN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: So, Mr. Jefferson, has anybody promised
you anything or offered you any hope or reward to get you to
plead that they haven't told me about?

MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: Are you fully satisfied with your
attorneys?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: 1Is there anything you want either of them

to do that they have not done for you other than speak for you?
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MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: Do you have any complaint against your
attorneys, law enforcement, anybody who's dealt with your case?

MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Trafficking and
methamphetamine it's a second offense for this level of drugs
carries seven to 30 years in prison and a $50,000 file. Do you
understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: It's classified as a violent offense, you
understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: It falls under the two strikes, you're
out, three strikes, you're out of legislation. It's a serious
offense, meaning if you get the right combination of strikes,
you have to do life in prison without parole. Do you
understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Possession with intent to distribute
cocaine is a third subsequent offense, also a felony and
carries five to 20 years in prison and a $20,000 fine. You
understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: 1It's classified as a serious offense,

meaning it's a strike. Do you understand?




12

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

12

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Possession with the intent to distribute
heroin is a second offense carries from five to 30 years in
prison and a $50,000 fine. You understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: It's classified as a serious offense
meaning it's a strike. Do you understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And unlawful neglect of a child is a
felony that carries up to 10 years in prison and a $10,000
fine. Do you understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Alright. ©Now, Mr. Jefferson, on a
violent felony, you lose your rights under South Carolina law
to transport, ship, receive or possess any type of firearm
ammunition. Do you understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All drug offenses are graduated. So, if
you violate drug laws, again, you face higher punishment
because this would be on your record. Do you understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: On the unlawful neglect charge, you
understand that I could put you on the registry for, what is it
called, child abuse or neglect. Do you understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.
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THE COURT: And you know that violent offenders are
treated differently in the department of corrections than
nonviolent offenders. You won't be eligible for certain
placements or programs that a nonviolent offender might be
eligible for?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. And you know, on a second violent
offense, you're required to do all the time without early
release?

MR. JEFFERSON: Excuse me, could you repeat that sir?

THE COURT: When somebody gets a second violent
offense, the Department of Corrections under the statute is
supposed to require to the full sentence. Do you understand?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. ©Now, anything in South
Carolina that carries a possibility of 20 years or more falls
under what's called Truth and Sentencing, those things are
actually called no parole offenses. What that means is that
you have served at least 85% of the time, day for day before
you possibly be released. Do you understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: When you come out, you automatically come
out on community supervision. If you fail to complete
community supervision, you can be sent back to prison. Do you

understand that?
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MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you understood everything I've been
over with?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes sir.

THE COURT: Are you sure you want to plead guilty?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jefferson made a free and
knowing involuntary and intelligent decision to waive his
rights and plead guilty. He has done so on the advice of
counsel and his fully satisfied as a factual basis for each
plea. Okay. Mr. Screen?

MR. SCREEN: Mr. Hatcher, we'll give the
[indiscernible] and I'll have a few words after that.

THE COURT: I'm sorry, Mr. Hatcher.

MR. HATCHER: All right. Your Honor, today is
Jasper's 54th birthday.

THE COURT: I'm sorry.

MR. HATCHER: He is married, his wife is employed at
the Sprint stores. He has two children and four grandchildren.
He has a business where he pressure washes houses and other
buildings with -- and his 1l6-year-old son, the son that was
with him when this happened, now 16 works with him on that
part-time when he is not in school. Jasper served in the Air
Force for four years and received an honorable discharge for

that.
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MR. SCREEN: Your Honor, there has been a lot of
meetings and negotiations, these -- as the Court knows are very
serious offenses, which exposes my client to a lot of time.

And because of that, we were meeting with the solicitor and
with him to ensure that we covered all of the bases. I had
along with Mr. Hatcher prepared a motion for suppression. And
looking at Rodriguez cases about extension of traffic stops and
what is permissible once the stop is made, we certainly were
looking at that. We looked at the failure to preserve evidence
and the standard which is required for Defendant to meet in
order to exclude it, which would include but not limit it to
showing that it was not by carelessness or neglect, but
intentional act on the part of law enforcement. And that he,
as a result, he would not be able to obtain his due process
rights. After looking at everything, judge, we finally struck
a deal with the State, which I believe is fair given all of the
circumstances. We understand the one thing that is certain
about trial is the uncertainty of what a jury will do. And
because of that, we stand here now asking this court to accept
the negotiated plea that we've laid. I think it serves its
purpose and I would ask you to accept it on behalf of this
Defendant.

THE COURT: Thank you. Do you want to say anything,
Mr. Jefferson?

MR. JEFFERSON: No, sir, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: How long did you stay in jail on these
charges?

MR. JEFFERSON: A little over two months, I think
it's something like that.

THE COURT: When you say a little over, how much
over?

MR. JEFFERSON: Probably about a week.

MS. YOUNG: Your Honor, he was arrested on June 12th,
2016 and had a bond order signed by Honorable Judge Cooper on
July 1l4th.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Jackson, do you
understand if you wish to appeal anything from this proceeding,
you have to do it in a short period of time in writing. You
understand that?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: So, if you want to appeal anything from
this proceeding, make sure you tell your lawyers immediately.
All right?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: ©Nothing further. The Court accepts the
plea, the sentence on each is that you be committed to the
South Carolina Department of Corrections for seven years
[indiscernible]. The sentence is run concurrently given the
credit for jail time under Section 24-13-40 be calculated and

applied by the Department of Corrections. I've written on your
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sheet to give you credit for 32 days the time served and your
court costs on each charge that one year release for prison.
Do you understand that this prohibits you from transporting,
shifting, receiving, or possessing any type of firearm or
ammunitions?

MR. JEFFERSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All these sentences are concurrent. Good
luck to you, sir.

MR. JEFFERSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

[END OF HEARING]
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14.

15.

ii.

iii.

iv.

27

the disposition thereof:
AN
NA
NN
NA

the date of each such disposition:

NN
NN
Nh
N

if known, citations of any written opinions or orders entered pursuant to each such

disposition:
B\ N
N1
(VRN
N

Has any ground set forth in (10) been previously presented to this or any other Court,

State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have filed?

o

If you answered *“yes” to (14) identify:

(a)
i,
il
1,
(b)
L
it

1il.

which grounds have been presented:
L NSAN
TN
A\

the proceedings in which each ground was raised:

Wb
NN

AN\

Revised 3/2003
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16.

17,

18.

If any ground set forth in (10) has not previously been presented to any Court, State or

Federal, set forth the ground and state concisely the reasons why such ground has not

previously been presented:

Were you represented by an attorney at any time during the course of!:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(©

(a)

i

il

iti.

(b)

ii.

iii.

your arraignment and plea? \}e..s
your trial, if any? jes.
your sentencing? e

your appeal, if any, from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of

sentence? 2 10)

N\

preparation, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions or

applications with respect to this conviction, which you filed?

the name and address of each attomey who represented you:

Seotw N\ Qe {‘QQ::\}LLL

gﬂggngs W olede &\ &.g&mgggdgi;&kﬂl ;
If you answered “yes” to one or more parts of (17}, list:

2y Qﬂ)ﬂ%‘j‘ %g Calunbba,, SO 2920]

Flemes  Madclner

247 fendledon S, Mmw. #4

f ‘ken, §.C_2780]

the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:

Mm_-._ﬁ&_,ﬁmm\m_
D

ES:::S"'“ Q K&&\Q(‘ A P)ea ;

Se n‘}m\r L
3

Revised 3/2003
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19.  State clearly the relief you seek in filing this application:

B _
_Cace da \se Dignassed

20.  Are you now under sentence from any other court that you have not challenged?

WO

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) VERIFICATION
County of N\ \J<Lv\ )

I er \ \S‘QR Qc&%mr\_ , being duly sworn
upon my oath, depose and say that [ have subscribed to the foregoing apphcatlon, that I know the

contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and that the matters and

allegations therein set forth are true,
U ) T/

4
“Upenm™™

Revised 3/2003
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APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT
IN SUPPORT THEREOF

—— — ——
], QQS %c.g; § N (< QQE DSOS , hereby apply for leave to
proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support of my

application I declare under penalty of perjury that the following facts are true:

(1)  Tamthe applicant in this action and I believe I am entitled to redress.

(2)  Because of my poverty I am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give

security thereof, ﬁ
U1 flar] ‘
SWEERN or affirmed to and subscribed before me this R
e L 1,
%ﬂ f | SN0y,
s° """"" O ’o"'
Xt o1y, A%
—————orary Ldblic I O =
/ HL T HE N 2 2 z
My Commissiofi Expires: {'}/’ /,7?’;\4.3 : 6 . d'é. N "8 H
12, NoN
A . N ¢ -~
'f.,"f 4/ ______ - &
""'u, SH N \d‘\ \\"‘“

Revised 3/2003
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ARREST WARRANT

2016A0210201002

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

Countyd D Municipality of
Aiken
THE STATE 16035141
against

Jasper Jerome Jefferson
Address.

Trenton, SC 29847-3680
Phone: SSN
Sex: M Race: Height: 5§ 10 Weight 205

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL ?é"‘m"‘o;'l.m
@ County! D Municipality of ) AFFIDAVIT asgncl‘zls.'z'ms d
Aiken ) /4; 5)0' ALy

Personally appeared before me the affiant  [JaDicl=Pucleeton who

being duly sworn deposes and says that defendant  Jasper Jerome Jefferson
did within Dus county and state on oraboul  §/21/2016
State of South Carolina {or ordinance of IE County/

in the following particulars:

viclate the crmnal Taws of the
[ ] Municipality of Aiken }

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Trafficking in Fleroin {More than 10 grams)

) Jjuther state that there s probable cause to believe that the defendant named above dic  commit
tha crime set forth and that probable cause i8 based on the following facts:

That or June 21, 2016 in the county of Aiken, the defendant. one Jasper Jefferson, did knowingly and unlawfully have in his

DL SW_S.C_ o possession more than 10 grams of Heroin, 2 Scheduled I controlied substance. This occurring at the intersection of Broagwater Loop
0oB: 1968 Agency ORi#  SC0020000 and Hwy 19 N (Edgefield Hwy). Aiken. SC. This being in violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws as amended.
Prosecuting Agency:  Aiken County Sheriff
Prosecuting Officer.  Daniel Puckett - 6659 .
Oftense: Drugs / Trafficking in Heroin (More than 10 a

grams) ’ -
Offense Code: 2361 £

i _ 3 %
Code/Ordinance Sec:  44-53-0370(eX3)( Signatize of Affant 57(7 ol "
Thes warrant s e STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA hl :
[} countyt [] Municpalty of 5] Gounty [] Wuncipatiy o Affiant's Address {20 Hampton Avenue ~ *

The accused Aiken, SC 29801- - s
IS to be arrested and brought before me fo be Aiken Affiant’s Telephone A
dealt with according to the law. —_g_—
&=
el ARREST WARRANT
Sgnature of Judge
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
it appearing from the above affidavit that 1there are reasonable grounds to  believe thal
RETURN about 6/21/2016 J J Jeffe

A copy of tis amest wamant was delivered 1o on e ! defendant asper Jerome Jererson

defendant

J.
on (.-n«?c.

%/—»

car

RETURN WARRANT TO:;

General Sessions J I
N POBox583 s 'JRi'G‘[\‘:
e _ 7109 Park Avenuc ! "ﬁiL
Aiken, SC 29802
‘ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

did viokite the chiminal laws of fhe State of South Carofina {or ordinance of
Kl County/ D Municpality of Aiken

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE:  Drugs / Trafficking in Heroin {(More than 10 grams}

} as set forth below:

Having found probable cause ang the above affant having sworn before me, you are empowered and directed to aest the said defendant and bnng hém or
her before me forthwith to be dealt with according 1o law. A copy of Ihis Arrest Warrant shail be detivered to the defendant at the thme of its execution, or as
soon thereafter as is practicable
Sworn 1o and subscribed before me
on 6/22/2016 )

Judge's Address

sy ) Aiken, SC 2980 1-8743
gral .
Sheridan Lee Lyny f. y udee's Tewwhone (803)642-2044
Judge Code: 5034 ) (ssuing Court. Magisirate D Municipal D Circuit
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
: )
COUNTY OF Alken )
)
STATE ) INDICTMENT/CASE#. 2016 - GS - 02 - 02090
V8. )
)
Jasper Jarome Jefferson ) AW 2016A0210201002
AKA: ) Dateof Offense: €/21/2016
Race: Black Sex: M Age: 54 }  S.C.Code §: 44-53-0370(b){1)
DOB: 5S#: ) CDR Code #: 0188
Address: )
City, State, Zip: [ ) SENTENCE SHEET
DL NI __ SO# _SCOD690754 ; 5 - 30 1ea(s
- 3‘50 [ D))
*CDL Yes [J No [] CMV Yes [ No [J Hazmat Yes (U] No [J M/O(& O )

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was ] CONVICTED OF or ﬁ PLEADS
TO: Drugs /MDP, Narcotic drugs In Sch. I(b) & (c}, LSD, and Sched. il - 2nd offense
7

in violation of § 44-53-0370(b)(1) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing COR Code # _ 0184

NON-VIOLENT [ VIOLENT SERIOUS  [] MOST SERIOUS  [] Mandatory GPS L] §17-256-45

(CSC wiminor 1% or CSC wiminor 39
Lesser Includeg 0 Delendani Walves

Thechargeis: [1  Asindicted,

Cttense, Pressntment to Grang Jury. (del.’s initials)
The plea is: [] Without Negotiations or Recomrmendation, Negotiated Sentence, []  HBeeem perby the State. 7 %.
ATTEST: ;
Goro
" g3t
folicitor U () SCBar#4 Defendant) U \] Attorney for Defendant SC Bar 4

WHEBREFORE, the Defendant is commitied to the Iﬁtﬂa Departmant of Correction [ Gounty Detention Center,

W—E’rumnmmmmma-_—_—wm

UdYE?

tor a determinate term of 1 daysfmonth

o-6—— ; plus costs and assessments as applicable’; the-batance-is-svspemded with-probationfor

oathelicaars-and subicor-haSu groina Uepa FfioTn Of Mrobation, Fargle and Pargon Sorvice

Tho géntence shall run
CONCURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on;

Theg Dete s to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be cakulated and applied by SCDOC.
é ‘% EEPM“
nclude ime spent on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentencing.

[0 The Defendant Shall be Releasad from County Detertion Centor.

Pursuent to 18 U.8.C, § 922 and § 16-25-30 it is unlawfu! for a person convicted of a violation of § 16-25-20 or § 16-25-65
(Domesilic Violsnce) to ship, transport, possess, or recelve a firearm or ammunition.
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STATE VS. Jasper Jerome Jefferson INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2016 - GS - 02 - 02090
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
1 PTUP after months/years
And Other Terms Listed Below:
[ Substance Abuse Gounseling O cCompletion of GED [0 Random Dsug/Alcohol Testing
[0 Attend Voc. Rehab. Or Job Comp [0 No Contact withViclim [[] Domestlc Viclence Intervention Program
[0 Mental Health Counseling 0 L":g;;:‘; WI/E
O Sex Oftender Registry pursuant to S.C. Code § 23-3-430 O Fublic Service Employment _ days/hours
O Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to 5.C. Code § 17-25-135.

& oer: _&%&MM#@Q&#LM

[J RESTITUTION: (] Deferred [ Def WalvesHearing [] Ordered

Total $ plus 20% fee: b
Payment Terms: [0 Set by SCDPPPS
Recipient:
*Fine: $
Fine may be pd. in equal consecutive waekly/monthly pmis. of  § Beginning
§14-1-206 (Assessmenls 107.5%) $
§14-1-211 (A)(1)(Conv. Surcharge) $100 § j00.00
§14-1-211 (A}(2)(DUI Surcharge) $100 §
§56-5-2095 (DUI Assessment) $12 $
§56-1-286 {DUI Breath Test) $25 )
§14-1.212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $§ R6.00
§14-1-213 (Orug Coun Suscharge) $150 § |soop
§34-11-70(b)and{(c), and 34-11-80(c)and(d) (Admin Fraud Chack Court Costs) $41 Y
§50-21-114 ({BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 3
§56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea §
3% to County (if paid in installments) ™BD $R.25
O Appointed PD ar eppointed other counssl, Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk

during probation and shall be collecled before any other fees $600 _$
[0 § 17-3-30(B) Unpaid Application Fee to be pald to the Public Defender Fund 8D %

. Presiding Judge:
Llek-oi-Court/Deputy Clork: Judge Code:
Court Repaorter: Santencs Date:

SCCA/217 (07/12021) Page 20l 2
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR

) POSSESSIONWITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE
COUNTY OF AIKEN ) HEROIN

)

§ 44-53-0370(b)(1)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on October 3, 2016, the Grand Jurors

of Aiken County present upon their oath:

That JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON did in Aiken County on or about June 21,
2016, knowingly or intentionally possess with intent o distribute a quantity of Heroin, a
controlled substance under provisions §44-53-110, et. seq., Code of Laws of Scuth

Carolina (1976), as amended, such possession not having been authorized by law.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided. ,e/ . g
J. FTROM THURMOND, éLICITO%?




WITNESSES DOCKET NO. 2016GS0202090

Aiken County Sheriff The State of South Carolina

Daniel Puckett County of Aiken

La‘w Enforcement Case #: 16-035141

BAY COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER OCTOBER TERM 2016

» & 2 20do
2016A0210201002 ] ——————
C.C.P.&G. THE STATE

Vs,

JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

~Z B0

W%/ COR # 0185 .
Forkpeison of Grand Jury . T

Date: September 23, 2016 Indictment for

—
——

VERDICT
POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO
DISTRIBUTE HEROIN

§ 44-53-0370(b)(1)

Foreperson of Petit Jury
© Date:

on

J. STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR



ARREST WARRANT
2016A0210201003
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
I__)_(—I Counly/ D Municipality of
Aiken
THE STATE 16035141
against
Jasper Jerome Jefferson
Address.
Trenton, SC 29847-3680

Phone .
Sax: M Race: Height § 10 Weight 205
DL State. oL#:
DOB: 1968 Agency ORI#. SC0020000

ProsecutingAgency:  Aiken County Sheriff
Prosecuting Officer.  Daniel Puckett - 6659
Offense: Drugs / Possession of Cocaine (less than 10grams)

Offense Code: 3011
Code/Orginance Sec:  44-53-0370(d)(3)

F orm Aparovad oy

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA } ORIGINAL Formaowved by
E] County/ D Municipatity of } AFFIDAVIT Apei21. 2003
Aiken ) })/nJAJ' p{

Personally appeared befora me the affiant Daniel-Buciatt who

being duly sworm depases and says that daefendant  Jasper Jerome Jefferson
dd within this county antt state on orabout  §721/2016
Stale of South Carolina tor ordinance of County!

n the followng particulars

violate the criminal laws of the
Aiken )

D Municipality of

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Dypy,p5 / Posscssion of Cocaine (less than 10grams)

| furmer  siake that  there S  probable cause 0 believe Lhat the defendant named above did commit
the crime set forth and that peobable cause is basad on the following facts.

Thaton June 21,2016 in the county of Aiken, the defendant, one Jasper Jefferson, did knowingly and without authorization possess
a quantity of Cocaine, a Scheduled II controlled narcotic. This occurring at the intersection of Broadwater Loop an
(Edpefield Hwy). Aiken, SC. This being in violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws as amended.

Yhes wanam s CERTIFIED  FOR SERVICE  n The
D County/ D Municipality of

The accused
s 10 be armestad and brought before me to be

dealt with according to the law.

(Ls)

Signature ot Jusge
Date:

RETURN
A copy of this arrest warrant was delvered to

defendant . 5. Jr—(-'(rmn
on Lo TT-48

7

RETURN WARRANT TO:
General Sessions 7“ ~
P O Box 583
* 109 Park Avenue
Aiken, SC 29802

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

2D
=+
o
Signature of Affiant /7—_‘ §/27 .?::
7 7 =
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) -
E Gounty l:] Muricipality of ) Affiant's Address 1.120 Hampton Avenuc
} Aiken, SC 29301- o
Aiken Affiant's Telephone |

ARREST WARRANT

TO ANY LAV ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY;
it appearing from the above affidavit that thera are reasonable grounds to believe that

on ofabout 6/21/2016 defendant Jasper Jerome Jefferson
dis violate the crminal laws of the Stale of South Carclina {or ordinamce of
E County! [:] Municipality of Aiken

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Possession of Cocaine {less than 0grams)

) as set forth below:

Having found probabide cause and the abova affiant having sworn before me, you are empowered ang directed 10 amest the said defendant and bring him or
her before me forthwith to be deait with according to law. A copy of this Amrest Warrant shall be delivered t the defendani at the time of its execution, or as
soon thereafler as is practicable
Swom to and subscribed before me
on 6/22/2016 )

Judge's Address
ws) )

Aiken, SC 29801-8743
Judge's Teleghone  (803)642-2044

[X] Magististe { ] Municipai
ORIGINAL

(gNal
Sheridan L& Lypn
Judge Code: 503

} Issuing Court.
ORIGINAL

|:] Circuit

ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

VAT S e RN UAN A 91 e
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BAIL set by WITNESSES
Judge Name:
Address’
o X206 |/ V 1
. Tolephone. -
Type and Amount: Zk f]ﬁd -
Name of Surety.
Name:
Address:
PRELIMINARY HEARING hetd! by
Telephorse:
Judge
Name:
on Address:
Defengant Attomey: Telephone:
Decision: Name:
Agdress:
Telephone
DISPOSITION before
Name:
Judge
Address:
on
Telephone:
by
Tndicate jury tnal, Bench trial, plea, rol. pros., eic )
Name:
Digposition: Address:
Sentence’ Telephone:
JURDORS Name
Acdress
Teleptone:
Name
Agdress:
Telephone.
CODEFENDANTS

A L AR



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF Atken

STATE

VS.

Jasper Jerome Jefferson

AKA:

ftace: Black Sex; M 3 54
DOB: SS#:
Addrasa:

I

City, State, Zip:

oL

*CDL Yes [ No [ CMV Yes [JNo [] Hazmat Yes [ No (]

SID# _SC00690754

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was
TO:  Drugs / Manui., poss. of other sub. in Sch. 1, 1, )l or flunitrazepam, w.lt.d. - 3rd or sub. offense

in violation of § 44-53-0370(b)(2)

X] NON-VIOLENT ] VIOLENT SERIOUS
. . Lesser Included
Thechargeis: [@  Asindcted, [0 Gyense.

The plea ls: {] Withaut Negotialicns or Recomrmendation, Negotlated Sentence, [1 _Recommendatian by the State.

ATTEST:

sl B. b, 73042 )
(Bolicitos U 0 SC Bar 4 nefemvt

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commitied to the

of the §.C. Code of Laws, bearing COR Code #
[0 MOST SERIOUS

39

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

INDICTMENT/CASE#: _2016 - GS - 02 - 02092

AW 2016A0210201003
Date of Offense: 8/21/2016
SC.Code §  44-530370(b)(2)
CDR Code #: 01588
SENTENCE SHEET
§-20 Jears
Q| 0L
O~ '3&01 00>

[0 CONVICTED OF or [ PLEADS

o188

[0 Mandatory GPS [ §17-25-45

(CSC w/minor 12t or CSC w/minor 3%}
0 Dafendam Walves

Psesentment to Grand Jury. (def.'s initials)

Y| \le‘OJJ
ol

TR

SC Bar#

Attarnay for Defendant

Eéaie Department of Correction  [-Gowmty Betention-Center,

annca shall run
CONCURRENT or [[] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:

The Pefendant is to be given crodil for time served pursuant to 8.C. Code § 24-13-40 ta be calculated and applied by SCDOC.

IMGRHhS

include lime spent on monitored house arrest prior o trial and sentencing.
[0 The Defandant Shall be Released from County Detention Centar,

Pursuant to 1B U.S.C. § 922 and § 16-25-30 it is unlawful for a person convicted of a viclation of § 16-25-20 or § 16-25-65
(Domestic Violence) to ship, fransport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition,
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STATE VS. Jasper Jaroms Jefferson INDICTMENT/CASE# 2016 - GS - 02 - 02092
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[0 PTUP after months/years
And Other Terms Listed Below:
[J Substance Abuse Counseling [] Compietion of GED [J Random Drug/Alcohol Testing
(O Attend Voc. Rehab. OrJdob Corp [ No Contsctwith Victim [J Domestic Vidlence Intervention Program
O Mental Heaith Counseling d r:;;:::.: WIE
O Sex Offender Ragistry pursuant to S.C. Code § 23-3-430 [ Public Service Employment __~ daysihours
[0 Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135.

E/Oiher. L S, .

[0 RESNITUTION: [0 Deferred [] Daf Walves Hearing [] Orderad

Total § plus 20% foe: $
Payment Terrns; O Set by SCDPPPS
Reclpient:
*Fine: $
Fine may be pd. in equal consscutive weekly/monthly pmts. of § Beginning
§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5%) $
§14-1-211 (A){1)(Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ lco.CcD
§14-1-211 (A)(2)(DUI Surcharge) $100 $
§50-5-2995 (DU Assessment) $12 $
§56-1-286 (D8 Breath Test) $25 [
§14-1-212 {Law Enforce. Funding) $25 395.00
§14+1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3 180.cO
§34-11-70{b)and{c), and 34-11-90(c)and{d) {Admin Fraud Check Caurt Costs) $41 $
§50-21-114 (BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $
§56-5-2842(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca §
3% 10 County (if paid in instaliments) T8D 38 .25
[ Appainted PD or appainted other counsel, Proviso requires $500 be paid 1o Clerk

during probation and shall be collected befare any qther fees $500 3
L] § 17-3-30(B) Unpaid Application Fee to be paid to the Public Defender Fund 18D $

ToTAL  $ 283,35

3 o -l Presiding Judge: _MA_@;&M;—*_
Glorkrel-Seurt/Doputy Clark: la. - Judge Code: y
<9 ,

Court Repottar: Sentence Date: la 2022

SCCAZYY (07/2021) Page2 ol 2
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR

) POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE
COUNTY OF AIKEN ) COCAINE

)

§ 44-53-0370(b)(2)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on October 3, 2016, the Grand Jurors

of Aiken County present upon their oath:

That JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON did in Aiken County on or about June 21,
20186, possess with intent to distribute a quantity of Cocaine, a controlled substance
under provisions of §44-53-110, et seq., Code of Laws of South Carolina (1976), as

amended, such possession not having been authorized by law.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and conirary to the statute in such case made and

provided.




WFI?ESSE? DOCKET NO. 2016GS$0202092

Aiken County Sheriff The State of South Carolina

Daniel Puckett County of Aiken

Law Enforcement Case #: 16-035141 — — — —

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER G OCTOBER TERM 2016
rILED Segfe mbee 21 5

2016A0210201003 ‘ — ——

THE STATE
VS.

JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON
ACTION OF GRAND JURY

—Ze Bill

CDR #: 0188 L
Foreperson of Grand J - - - T
_Date: September 29, 2016 _ _ indictment for
VERDICT
POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO
DISTRIBUTE COCAINE
§ 44-53-0370(b)(2)

Foreperson of Petit Jury J. STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR
Date:

o\
w



ARREST WARRANT

2016A0210201001

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

43

County? Municipality of
x] ]
Aiken
THE STATE 16035141
againsi

Jasper Jerome Jefferson

Acktress:

Trenton, SC 29847-3680

Sex: Heght. 5§ . 10 Weight: 205
DL Siate; oL
oos: 1568 Agency ORI #  SC0020000

Prosecuting Agency:  Aiken County Sheriff

Prosecuting Officer. Daniel Puckett - 6659

Offense: Drugs / Trafficking in Meth, 400 grams or more
{Felony, 25Y to 30Y)

Offense Code: 0370

Code/Ordinance Sec:  44-53-0375(C)(3)

STATE OF SQUTH CAROLINA

ORIGINAL  TT55wes. .
K] Countyt ] Munceaityof AFFIDAVIT Seeas
Aiken ) /ms}\r {er
Petsonally appeared before me the affiant . Dameel—Perekott who

being duly sworn deposes and says that defendant Jasper Jerome Jefferson
dd wihin this county and state on oraboul §/21/2016
State of South Carofina (or ordinance of @ County!

in the following particulars:

vidale the crmwnal laws of Ihe
Aiken )

D Municipality of

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drygs / Trafficking in Meth, 400 grams or morc {Felony, 25Y t0 30Y)

| furlher  slale that these s probable cause (o Delieve that the opefendant named above o commit
the crima set forth and that probable cause is based on the iollowing facts:

That on June 21, 2016 n the county of Aiken, the defendant, one Jasper Je(ferson, did have in his possession more than 400 grams
of Methamphetamine, a Scheduled [[ controlled substance. This occurring at the intersection of Rroadwater Loopand Hwy 19N
{Edgefield Hwy). Aiken. SC. This being in violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws as amended.

CERTIFIED FOR_ SERVICE  m the
C] Municipality of

This warrant 1s
D County/
The accused

s to be arrested and brought before me to be
dealt with according to the law.

(LS.

Signansre of Judge
Date:

RETURN
A copy of (his arest wamant was delivered to

defendant _Is.rih.(_'&.mur SeCrisnn
on " . Zz‘ !;

— A i

RETURN WARRARNT TO:
General Sessions ﬁ
P O Box 583 [ S . ...7 i .
* 109 Park Avenue IRy
Aiken, SC 29802

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

//5__7@/7" 5,17

whe 24 20\lp

Signative of Affiant
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA J 470 11 pto A -
L Affiant's Address 4 am n AvVenue
Counly/ M pality of
] coumyt [T] Municiel ) Aiken, SC 70801- :
Aiken Affiant’s Telephane
&
[
ARREST WARRANT

TOANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
It appearing from the above afidavit that there are reasonable grounds to  believe that

on orabout 6/21/2016 defendant  Jasper Jerome Jefferson

did wiolate the crimmal laws of the State of South Carolina (or ordinance of
E County/ D Municipality of Aiken

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Trafficking in Meth. 400 grams or more {Felony, 25Y 1o 30Y)

) as set forth below:

Having found probabée cause and the above afiant having sworn before me. you are empowerad and direcied 10 ames! the said defendant and bnng him of
her before me forthwith 10 be sealt with according to 1aw. A copy of this Arest Warranl shall be delivered to the defendtant at the time of its execution, or as
soon thereafter as is practicable

Swom to and subscribed before me )

on 6/22/2016

Judge’'s Address

Ls) Aiken, SC 29801-8743

) Judge’s Telephone  (803)642-2044
D Municipal

Magistrate
ORIGINAL

Sheridan Lee Lyngfr.
Judge Code: 5034 )

ORIGINAL

issuing Court:
ORIGINAL

D Circuit

ORIGINAL
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. BAIL set by WITNESSES
Judge M,‘_ ’2 Name
Address:
Iy I8 :
N Telephona._ . 1
Type and Asmaunt: &h,{d }-* -
Name of Surety:
Name
Address;
PRELIMINARY HEARING held by
Jetephone:
Judge
Name:
on Adoress:
Defendant Attormey. Telephone:
Decision: Name:
Address:
Telephone
DISPOSITION before
Name:
Judge
Address:
on
Telephone:
by
{indicate jury tnal, bench tnal, plea, nal. pros., efe))
Name
Disposition: Adoress:
Sentence: Telephone:
JURORS Name:
Acdress;
Telephane:
Name:
AQaress;
Talephone.
CODEFENDANTS

O O

v




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF Aiken

STATE
VS.

Jasper Jarome Jafferson

AKA:
Raca:
DOB:
Address:
Clty, Siate,

DL#*

*CDL Yes [] No [T] €MV Yes [[] No [J Hazmat Yes (INo []

In disposition of the above indictment comes now the Defendant who was

45

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2016 - GS - 02 - 02091
AW 2018A0210201001
Date of Offense: 8/21/2016
S.C. Code §: 44-53-0375(C)(5)
CDR Code #: 0370
SENTENCE SHEET

Sy s o

O CONVICTED OF or [X PLEADS

TO.  Drugs / Trafficking in ice, crank or crack - 28 g or more, but less than 100 g - 2nd offense
!

In violation of § 44:53-0875(C)(2)(b). of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # _ 0389

[J NON-VIOLENT X VIOLENT SERIOUS

@ Lesser Ineluded

Thechargeis; [ Offense

As indicted,

[J MOST SERIOUS

] Mandatory GPS [ §17-25-45

(CSC w/minor-1*or CSC w/minor 39)
O Defendant Walves

Presentment to Grand [ury. {def.’s initials}

T \Jeass

e ——

The plg:; is: [0 Wilhout Negotiations or Recommendation, [X] Negotiated Santence, [] omms n by the State. ! b4
ATTEST: .
6[ IW:(JALIQ . 18947 ./0 J/l\{ m@@% 2334

C Bar #

OSolicItor U

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is committed to the

Defendant U

~of 3 . plus costs and assessments as applicabley; 1

State Department of Correction

Y V' Attorney for Defendant SC Bar #

Couniy-Betention-Center,

moAthslyearsTime Served-and-or-payment—-

manths/ynars agd subjeet-te-SouthrCaroimaDepartment-of-Probation-Parotearii Pardon Services standard condiions o
hati Pioh-orod bvsel

T ntence shall run
CONGURRENT or {] CONSECUTIVE io sentence on:

CdaydimentTs

The Defen! nt is to ba given credil for time served pursuant to 8.C. Cada § 24-13-40 1 be calculated and applied by SCDOC.
| ]

oinclude time spant on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentoncing.
[0 The Defendant Shall be Released from County Datention Canter,

Pursuant 10 18 U.S.C, § 922 and § 16-25-30 {t is unilawful for a persen convicted of a violation of § 16-25-20 or § 16-25-65
(Domestic Viclence) 1o ship, ranepont, possess, or receiva a firearm or ammunition.
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STATE VS. Jasper Jerome Jefferson INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2016 - GS - 02 - 02091

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

PTUP after months/years
And Other Terms Listed Below:

Substance Abuse Counseling [ Completion of GED [0 Random Drug/Alcohol Testing

Mental Health Counssling O Ma)[ serve W/E
beginning:

O

O

[0 Attend Voc. Rehab. Or Job Corp [J NoContact with Victim [J Domestic Viotence Intervention Program

a

0 Sex Offender Registry pursuant to S.C. Code § 23-3-430 []  Public Sewvice Employment days/hours
O

Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135.

D0 RESTITUTION: [0 Deterred [ Detf. WalvesHearing [] Ordered

Total § plus 20% tee: $
Payment Terms: O Set by SCDPPPS
Recipient:
“Fine: $
Fine may be pd. in equal consecutive weekly/monthly pmts. of  $ Beginning
§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5%) $
§14-1-211 (A)(1)(Conv. Surcharge) $100  §log.co
§14-1-211 (A){2)(DUI Surcharge) $100 g
§56-5-2995 (DU Assessment) $12 $
§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 $
§14-1-212 (Law Enforce, Funding) $28 $ g‘g.uo
§14-1-213 {Drug Court Surcharge) §150 § |50.00
§34-11-70{b)and(c), and 34-11-80{c)and(d) (Admin Fraud Check Court Costs) $41 $
§50-21-114 (BUI Breath Test Fen} $50 g
§56-5-2842(J) (Vehiclo Assessment) $40/ea 3
3% to County (ff paidin installments) T80 $ .20
[O Appointed PD or appointed other counsel, Proviso requires $500 ba pald lo Clerk

during probation and shall ba collected before any other fees : $500 &
0 § 17-3-30(B) Unpaid Application Fae to be paid 10 the Public Defender Fund TBD §

< Presiding Judge:
emRBTreTon/Deputy Clo (i} v Judge Code:
Court Reporter: Sentence Date;

SCCA/217 (07/2021) Page2ol2
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR

) TRAFFICKING METHAMPHETAMINE
COUNTY OF AIKEN )

) § 44-53-0375(C)(5)

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on October 3, 2016, the Grand Jurors

of Aiken County present upon their oath:

That JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON did in Aiken County on or about June 21,
2016, commit the offense of Trafficking In Methamphetamine by knowingly or
intentionally having in actual or constructive possession at least 400 grams or more of
Methamphetamine, a controlled substance under provisions of Section 44-53-110, et.
seq., Code of Laws of South Carolina (1978), as amended, such possession not having

been authorized by law.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided.




WITNESSES
Aiken County Sheriff
Danie! Puckett

Law Enforcement Case #: 16-035141

BAY

——— — — e—

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER

l-um_j_'f{ﬂﬁmlﬁcﬁ?_zod@

2016A0210201001 ( é %
.C.P.&G.S.

e Hadls o) of

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

C Se. B

creperson of Grand Jury
Date. September 29, 2016

———
—— a—

VERDICT

o0
<t

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO. 2016GS$0202091

The State of South Carolina
County of Aiken

e —r—— e E———— e —me——

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
OCTOBER TERM 2016
THE STATE
VS,

JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON

CDR #: 0370

indictment for

TRAFFICKING METHAMPHETAMINE
§ 44-53-0375(C)(5)

J. STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR



ARREST WARRANT

2018A0210201000

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

() -
< County? D Municipality of
Aiken
THE STATE 16035141
against
Jasper Jerome Jefferson
Address:
Trenton, SC 29847-3680
Phone: S5
Sex ace: Height: 5§ 10 weight 208
DL State- DL &
Do8: 1968 Agency ORI & SCO0020000
Prosecuting Agancy  Aiken County Sheriff
Prosecuting Oficer Daniel Puckett - 6659

Offense. Children /Unlawful Conduct toward a child

Offense Code 2481
CodefOrdinance Sec.  63-05-0070

STATE OF SOUTH CARCLINA ) ORIGINAL F?Awm%:ym‘
E County/ r] Municipality of ) AFFIDAVIT Avs Z. 20m3
Aiken ) /n D"’_';""

Personaky appeared before me Ihe affient  DamdelDuckes= who

being duly swom deposes and says thal defendant  Jasper Jerome JefTerson
did within this county and state on orabout  6/21/2016
State of South Caraiina (or ordinance of @ County?

n the following particulars:

vidlate the ciminal laws of the
Aiken )

D Municipality of

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Children /Unlawful Conduct toward a child

i funher state that there s probable cause 0 believe that the defendan! named above did commit
the crime set forth and that probable cause s based on the following facts:

That on June 21, 2016 in the county of Aiken, the defendant, one Jasper Jefferson, did knowingly place a (juvenile black male) at
unreasonable risk of harm affecting the child's life, physical or mental health, or safety by having the child preset during the
disiribution of a guantity of Methamphetamine, Heroin and Cocaine, in the vehicle during a maffic stop on Edgeficld Hwy at
Broadwater |.oop, Aiken, SC. This being in viclation of the South Carolina Code of Laws as amended.

Sgnature of Athant

CERTIFIED TOR SERVICE n the
D Municipalty of

This warrant is
D County/
The accused

Is to be arrested and brought before me to be
deait with according to 1he law

(LS)

Signature of Judge
Date:

RETURN
A copy of this arrest warant was delivered to

dafendant " .
on /. z_&j‘

RETURN WARRANT TO:
. - 3 f—" .«.3 a .
Pomn Lo HEINAL

109 Park Avenue
Aiken, SC 29802

‘ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
E County D Municipaity of ) Afiant’s Address

Aiken

420 Hampron Avenue

Aiken, SC 29801~

Affiant's Telephone

ARREST WARRANT

e, Wudel 240 201
F &
ty

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
i appearing from the above affidavit Ihal there are reasonsble grounds to believe that

on orabout 62172016 defendant  Jasper Jerome Jefferson
did wviolale the c¢riminal laws of the State of South Carolina {or ordinance of
E County/ D Municipality of Aiken

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Children /Unlawful Conduct toward a child

) as set rorth belgw:

Having founy probable cause and the above affiant having sworn beilore me, you are empowered and direcied o arrest the said defendant and bring him or
her betore me forthwath 1o be dealt with accofding to law, A copy of this Arrest Warrant shall be delivered to the defendant at the lime of its execution. of as
soon theneafter as is practicable

Swormn to and subscrbed before me )

on 6/22/2016 )
—y— Judge's Address

sy ) Aiken, SC 29801-8743
| Jodges Tekepnore (803)642-2044

lssuing Court: WMagistrate [] Municipal
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

Sheridan {.cc L .
Judge Code: 5034 )
ORIGINAL

D Circuit

ORIGINAL
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BAIL set by WITNESSES
Judge ? Name:
Address:
o 443 /& - ,
‘elephone’.
Type and Amaunt: & ! lo :
Name of Surety.
Name:
Address:
PRELIMINARY HEARING held by
Telephone:
Judge
Name:
on Address
Defendant Attorney: Telephone:
Decision Name.
Addrass.
Telephone:
DISPOSITION before
Name:
Judge
Address:
an
Telephone:
by
(indicate jury tnal, bench tnal, plea, nal. pros., etc.)
Name:
Dhisposition Address:
Sentance: Telephone-
JURORS Name
Address
Telephone
Name:
Address,
Telephone
CODEFENDANTS

A RSO
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STAYE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
. )
COUNTY OF Aiken )
)
STATE )  INDICTMENT/CASE# _2016- GS - 02 - 02093
VS, )
)
Jasper Jerome Jefferson ) AW 2016A0210201000
AKA: ) Date of Offense: 6/21/2016
Race: Black Sex: 0 64 ) S8.C.Code§: 63-05-0070
DOB: ) CDR Code #: 2481
Address: )
City, State, Zip: ) SENTENCE SHEET
OLe NENNNNNN SOY SCOIGoUse )
) 0~ }0 \I W‘b
*CDL Yas [J No ] CMV Yes [J No (] Hazmat Yes [ JNo ] M& 0" u‘ﬂlo w
\

In disposition of the abeve indictment comes now the Defendant who was  [] CONVICTED OF or FLEADS
TO: Children / Legal custodian, uniawlul neglect of chitd or héipless persen

In viplation of § 63-05-0Q70 of the S.C. Codo of Laws, bearing CDR Cede # _ 2481

NON-VIOLENT  [J VIOLENT [1 sErious [J MOSTSERIQUS (] MandatoryGPS [ §17-2548

(CSC w/minor 1% or CSC w/minor 39)

. . Lesser Included Defendant Waives
The charga is: 5| Asindicted, [ Oftense, C Presentmant to Grand Jury.

(det.’s initials)
7 \€ods
108,

s/years/ [ Ime Served and orpayment.
“ot$—_; plus costs and assessments as applicable}; the-batence-issusperaiod witrprotation-for

MWWHWSWWWf
“probetiom, are incorpora :

antence shall run
CONCURRENT ar [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:

is to be given credit {or time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 1o be caiculated and applied by SCDOG.

Yofhiclude time speni on monitored house arrest prior to trial and sentencing.
[0 The Defendant Shall be Released from County Detention Center.

Pursuant to 18 1.5.C. § 822 and § 16-25-30 it Is unlawlul for a person canvicted of a violation of § 16-25-20 or § 16-25-65
(Domestic Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or recaive a firearm or ammunition.
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STATE VS, Jasper Jerome Jeffarson INDICTMENT/CASES: 2016 - GS - 02 - 02093
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
O PTUP after months/years
And Other Terms Listed Below:
O substance Abuss Caunseling [] Completion of GED [ Random Drug/Akohal Testing
[0 Attend Voc. Rehab. OrJob Cop [J No Contact with Vietm ] Domestic Violence Intervention Program
0 Mental Health Counseting [1 Maysewe W/E
beginning:
[ SexOffender Registry pursuant to 8.C. Code §23-3-430 [  Public Service Employment __ days/howrs

Central Registry of Child Abuse and Negiect pursuant t0 5.C. Code § 17-25-135,

0
o oer. 1] ] LMW

[J RESTITUTION: [ Deferred [ Def. Waives Hearing [ Ordered

Total $ plus 20% foe: $

Payment Temms: [ Setby SCOPPPS

Recipient:

*Fine:

Fine may be pd. in equal consecutive weekly/monthly pmts.of 8 Beginning
§14-1-208 (Assessmonts 107.5%)

§14-1-211 {A)(1}{Canv. Surcharge)

§14-1-211 (A)(2)({DU! Surchargs)

§56-5-2995 (DU Assessment)

§56-1-286 (DUI Brealh Test)

§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Fundging)

§14-1-213 (Drug Cour Surcharge)

§34-11-70(b)and{c), and 34-11-90{c)and(d) (AdmIin Fraud Check Court Costs)
§50-21-114 {BUI Breath Test Fes)

§56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessmont)

3% to County (if paid in installments)

[0 Appeinted PD or appointed other counsel, Proviso requlres $500 be paid to Clerk
during probation and shall be collected before any cther fees
O §17-3-30(B) Unpaid Application Fee to be paid to the Public Defender Fund

-~ Presiding Judge:
—giaricu-Comt/Deputy Clerk; - Judge Code;
Coun Repor(er: E Sentence Date:

SCCARY7 (0772021

TOTAL

$
$
$100 $ 100.0°
$100 ¢
$12 3
$25 $
$25 5.00
$150 $
$41 $
$50 $
$40/e0 3
T80 $3.715
$500 $
TBD 3
s 128.715
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA INDICTMENT FOR

)

) UNLAWFUL CONDUCT TOWARDS A CHILD
COUNTY OF AIKEN )
) § 63-05-0070

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on October 3, 2016, the Grand Jurors

of Aiken County present upon their cath:

That JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON, father of [ = chid of nine
(9) years of age, did in Aiken County on or about June 21, 2016, unlawfully place the
child at unreasonable risk of harm affecting the child's life, physical or mental health, to
wit: —was present in the vehicle while Jasper Jerome Jefferson was
transporting various drugs inside the vehicte. All in violation of §63-56-70, Code of Laws

of South Carolina (1976), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided.




DOCKET NO. 2016GS0202093

“WITNESSES
Aiken County Sheriff The State of South Carolina
Daniel Puckett County of Aiken
Law Enforcement Case #: 16-035141 ..
_ ey COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER OCTOBER TERM 2016

Lﬂﬂ)@hﬁ&izodg_

2016A0210201000 /7. = —= =S —————
— %c,y .&GM-—S. THE STATE

vSs.

JASPER JEROME JEFFERSON

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

e ——

CDR #: 2481
Foreperson of Grand Jury -
Date: September 29, 2016 Indictment for

VERDICT
UNLAWFUL CONDUCT TOWARDS A

CHILD

§ 63-05-0070

J. STROM THURMOND, SOLICITOR

Foreperson of Petit Jury
- Date:

Q!
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF AIKEN ) FOR THE SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
) _
Jasper Jefferson, SCDC #389038, ) Case No. 2024-CP-02-00479
)
Applicant, )
)
V. } RETURN AND PARTIAL MOTION TO DISMISS
) (Counsel Appointed)
)
)
State of South Carolina, )
)
Respondent. )
}
)

In response to the post-conviction relief (PCR) action commenced by Jasper Jefferson
(Applicant) on February 26, 2024, the State makes this return:

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant
to orders of commitment from the Aiken County Clerk of Court. During its October 2016 term,
the Aiken County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for possession with intent to distribute heroin
(2016-GS-02-02090); trafficking methamphetamine, 400 grams or more (2016-GS-02-02091);
possession with intent to distribute cocaine (2016-GS-02-02092); and unlawful conduct towards a
child (2016-GS-02-02093). The case was prosccuted by Elizabeth B. Young, Esquire, of the
”“,_S¢90}1§1__Qircuit Solicitor’s Office. Applicant was represented by Jerry M. Screen, Sr., Esquire.

On September 12, 2022, Applicant pleaded guilty to the lesser included offense of
trafficking methamphetamine, 28-100 grams, and as indicted on the remaining charges before the

Honorable William P. Keesley. Pursuant to negotiations between the Staie and Applicant, Judge

FLED___ u,\d 25 20 24
/1%77 B
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Keesley sentenced Applicant to seven years’ imprisonment on each charge, with those sentences
to run concurrently. Applicant did not file a direct appeal.
FaCTS
The following summary was taken, verbatim, from the Solicitor’s recitation of the facts at
Applicant’s guilty plea hearing:

On June 21%, 2016, Deputy Puckett and Deputy Bozark Aiken County Sherriff’s
Office were running radar. The location on Highway 19 here in Aiken County, they
observed vehicle that was speeding. Deputy Bozark got behind it to initiating a traffic stop.
He got the driver who was Mr. Jasper Jefferson’s wife. OQut of the vehicle she was acting
very nervous,

Deputy Puckett pulled up shortly after the initial stop. He is a canine deputy and
Deputy Bozark indicated he wanted him to go ahead and run the dog around the car based
on the driver’s demeanor. He did do that, he got alerted by sitting outside the driver’s door
while he was doing that. Deputy Argine noticed that Mr. Jefferson, who was in the front
passenger seat, was extremely netvous to the point where he was well - - he just noticed
that he was very nervous and his demeanor was also unusual.

So, the dog alerted. They did do a search vehicle in a UPS mailing package in the
passenger side floorboard where Mr. Jefferson seated. They found a large quantity of what
appeared to be amphetamine, a pill bottle that contained three small baggies of a white
powder substance along with digital scales and quantity of United States currency. The
items were sent off to be tested and came back. Methamphetamine was positive for
methamphetamine, 574.46 grams. Cocaine was positive, 1.09 grams. Heroin was positive,
3.13 grams. When we started getting this case ready and looking at it numerous years ago,
we discovered that Deputy Bozark’s camera had rolled off the system and was not
preserved initially, Deputy - - and additionally, Deputy Puckett’s camera started well into
the traffic stop where all the necessary items or incidents had already taken place off
camera.

And this was before either deputy had been issued a body-worn camera. So, we had
some problems with that at the very beginning of the case. Additionally, Mr. Jefferson did
make some incriminating statements on the scene. He had not been advised of his Miranda
rights, so we’re not going to be able to bring those in at trial.

His son was in the backseat of the car and both parents were arrested on the scene
for long conduct as well as these drug charges. His case just kind of stayed in the back of
my roster because he was out on the line. However, then he was rearrested in June of this
year for driving the wrong way in this highway and appeared to be under the influence as
well as possessing what appear to be cocaine. Those charges will be no pause as a result of
this plea.

We take the State’s negotiations, this came up on our 1095 docket. We begin
earnestly trying to resolve it in addressing the issues that the case had. We made a
negotiated seven year offer for all these four charges to run concurrently. If Your Honor
will accept it, the law enforcement is in support of the negotiation. This was - - we were
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preparing this actually for trial all last week. When we went and reviewed the evidence,
we realized that the EPS mailer bag that was mentioned in the deputy’s report actually had
Mr. Jefferson’s name on it. So, that was another incriminating factor that I think led him to
ultimately take this plea here today.

Your Honor, he does have a prior record in South Carolina in 1990, conviction of

possession of cocaine. The remainder of all his convictions are federal convictions. In
1992, narcotics and conspiracy, 1993, conspiracy of cocaine with intent to distribute. 1999,
distribution of cocaine as well as violation of supervised release and additional conviction
to repeat with cocaine 1999. Based on all the factors going into the case since age, we ask
that, Your Honor, accept the negotiation and sentence him to a seven-year active sentence.

(Gp. Tr. p.7-9).

CURRENT APPLICATION

In his application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges he is being held in custody

unlawfully based on the following:

1. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel
a. “Counsel failed to file (as requested) a “Motion” to Suppress evidence for drugs

C

seized from vehicle and have charge(s) dismissed. Had Counsel file the requested
motion the outcome of the proceeding against me (Defendant) would have been
different. Instead. Counse! threatened and coerced me (Defendant) into a plea
arrangement or I would have received a much greater sentence, Counsel failed to
adequately address the merits of the issue of probable cause, search and seizure of
a speedy traffic violation and challenge the State’s (Officer’s) destruction of Body
camera and Officer’s car dash camera footage ([sic} or the tape) during the
beginning of the Traffic stop. Per Statute 56-5-2953 Video recording should begin
when Blue light activate, to include beginning to the end. Faiture to hear this video
footage, alone is enough to have charges dismissed. Counsel representation fell
below an objective standard of reasonableness. There is a reasonable probability
that, but for the Counsel’s unprofessional error, the result of the proceeding would
have been different.”

“Violation of Professional Conduct, Rule 407. Counsel has a responsibility to abide
by requests and decisions by his Client concerning the objective’s of his
representation (Rule 1.2 Scope of Representation) regarding that Counsel file a
Motion to Suppress Evidence and dismiss charges. Rule 1.4 Communication,
Counsel shall consult with his Client (Defendant) as to the means by which they
are to be pursued and Counsel should take action per Client’s request. Rule 1.3
Diligence. A Lawyer should purse a matter on behaif of a client despite opposition,
obstruction or personal inconvenience and take whatever lawful and ethical
measures are required to vindicate a client’s cause. Defendant’s attorney was
ineffective because he failed to follow the Rules of Professional Conduct.
“Counsel’s ineffective assistance rendered the Guilty Plea involuntary.”

2. 14" Amendment (Due Process)
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a.

“My (Defendant) Due Process rights was violated as the result of the exculpatory
evidence being destroyed Defendant was pulled over for speeding however the
Report states that immediately a second officer arrived at or about 45 secs to one
minute and deployed a K-9 to the passenger of the vehicle being the Defendant.
Based on the Report, Law Enforcement abandoned its traffic stop and shifted
attention entirely to a Narcotic’s investigation. At this point the traffic stop was
prolonged and Defendant didn’t feel he was free to leave after a citation was issued.
Defendant refused consent to search however Officer proceeded anyway where
narcotic’s and possessions was seized. During the search the Detendant recognized
the Officer remove these monies and narcotics to his vehicle. Upon arrival of a
“Drug Task Force Unit”, the Officer was advised to put monies, narcotics back in
Defendant’s car. This is clearly a error in chain of custody. To prove the
Defendant’s Due Process was in violation, the Defendant sought to review dashcam
footage and body cam footage from Officer’s on the scene to learn officer’s did not
turn on his dashcam until afier the narcotics investigation was essentially complete.
Also other dashcam footage was deleted by Law Enforcement from its server before
Defendant could review the footage.

3. 4™ Amendment Violation

d.

“4 Amendment, search and seizure rending evidence of the seizure of the alleged
drugs is inadmissible. Accordingly, evidenced seized in violation of the fourth (4™
Amendment must be excluded. This exclusion is accomplished through the
exclusionary rule, ‘a judicially created remedy designed to safeguard Fourth
Amendment rights generally through its deterrent effect, rather than a personal
constitutional right of the party aggrieved. By excluding the wrongfully obtained
evidence, Courts effectively compel’ respect for the constitutional guarantee in the
only etfectively available way by removing the incentive to disregard it. Finally,
regarding K-9 deployed dog sniff. This not an ordinary incident of a traffic stop.
See Rodriguez v. U.S. (2015). As a result, and because the sniff is intended to detect
ordinary criminal wrongdoing, ‘it may not prolong the duration of the traffic stop
absent consent of those detained or reasonable suspicion of criminal activity. See
U.S. v. Perez (2022). Absent consent or reasonable suspicion, the critical question,
then, is not whether dog sniff occurs before or after the office issues a ticket... but
whether conducting the sniff prolongs (adds time) to the stop.

4. White v. State Claim

a.

“My attorney failed to respond to my request in court and after.”

b. “I did not understand my Due Process and was coereced into a plea.”

c.

“After sentence I requested that my attorney that [ wanted to give back the Plea and
wanted a Jury Trial.”

Applicant requests relief as follows:

“Case to be dismissed.”

Attached to this return and incorporated by reference are the Aiken County Clerk of Court

records regarding the subject conviction, Applicant’s records from the South Carolina Department
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of Corrections, the plea transcript, and the records of the current PCR action. The State reserves
the right to amend this return upon receipt of any relevant materials.

RESPONSE TO ALLEGATIONS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL

The Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution guarantee
Applicant, like all other defendants, the right to effective assistance of counsel. Strickland v.

Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984); Taylor v. State, 404 S.C. 350, 359, 745 §.E.2d 97, 101 (2013).

Ordinarily, PCR allegations are centered upon an allegation that the applicant did not receive
effective assistance of counsel guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment. See generally S.C. Code Ann.
§ 17-27-20(A) (enumerating allegations cognizable in PCR actions). The allegation of denial of
such representation sets forth a prima facie violation of this constitutional right and raises a

question of fact that can only be determined by an evidentiary hearing. Rogers v. State, 261 S.C.

288, 291, 199 S.E.2d 761, 762 (1973).

In a post-conviction relief action, the applicant bears the burden of proving the allegations
by a preponderance of the evidence—a mere allegation of ineffective assistance is not sufficient
to warrant granting relief. Rule 71.1(e), SCRCP; Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 442, 334 S.E.2d
813, 814 (1985). The reviewing court applies the two-part test outlined in Strickland to determine
whether counsel’s conduct “was so ineffective as to require reversal” of the applicant’s conviction
or sentence. 466 U.S. at 687. First, the applicant must show that counsel’s performance was
deficient; and second, that the deficient performance prejudiced the applicant. Id. at 668; Butler,
286 S.C. at 442, 334 S.E.2d at 814.

The first prong—constitutional deficiency—is “necessarily linked to the practice and

expectations of the legal community.” Padilla v. Kentucky, 559 U.S. 356, 366 (2010). In order to

prove deficient performance, the applicant must show counsel’s representation fell below an
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objective standard of “reasonableness under prevailing professional norms.” Cherry v. State, 300

S.C.115,117-18, 386 S.E.2d 624, 625 {1989). The proper measure of performance is whether the
attorney provided representation within the range of competence required in criminal cases. Butler,
286 S.C. at 442, 334 S.E.2d at 814.

Strickland, however, “does not guarantee perfect representation{—IJonly a ‘reasonably

competent attorney.””” Harrington v. Richter, 562 U.S. 86, 110 (2011) (quoting Strickland, 466

U.S. at 687). Representation is constitutionally ineffective only if counsel’s conduct “so
undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process™ that the defendant was denied a fair
proceeding. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686. Just as there is “no expectation that competent counsel
will be a flawless sirategist or tactician, an attorney may not be faulted for a reasonable
miscalculation or lack of foresight or for failing to prepare for what appear to be remote
possibilities.” Harrington, 562 U.S. at 110.

Accordingly, “[jJudicial scrutiny of counse!’s performance must be highly deferential, as
it is all too tempting for a defendant to second-guess counsel’s assistance after conviction or an
adverse sentence, and it is all too easy for a court, examining counsel’s defense after it has proved
unsuccessful, to conclude that a particular act or omission of counsel was unreasonable.”

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689; see also Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. 1, 6 (2003) (“The Sixth

Amendment guarantees reasonable competence, not perfect advocacy judged with the benefit of
hindsight.”). Thus, the question is whether an attorney s representation amounted to incompetence
under “prevailing professional norms,” not whether it deviated from best practices or most
common custom. Id. (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690).

Thus, a fair assessment of attorney performance requires every effort be made to eliminate

the distorting effects of hindsight, to reconstruct the circumstances of counsel's challenged
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conduct, and to evaluate the conduct from counsel’s perspective at the time. [d. Because of the
difficulties inherent in making such an evaluation, the reviewing court must indulge in a *“strong
presumption that counsel’s conduct falls within the wide range of reasonable professional
assistance.” Butler, 286 5.C. at 445, 334 S.E.2d at 816. The applicant must overcome this
presumption to receive relief. Cherry, 300 S.C. at 118, 386 S.E.2d at 625.

Reviewing courts “must judge the reasonableness of counsel’s challenged conduct on the
facts of the particular case, viewed at the time of counsel’s conduct.”™ Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690.
An applicant making a claim of ineffective assistance “must identify the acts or omissions of
counsel that are alleged not to have been the result of reasonable professional judgment.” Id. The
reviewing court must then “determine whether, in light of all the circumstances, the identified acts
or omissions were outside the wide range of professionally competent assistance.” Id.

The Strickland standard must be applied with scrupulous care, lest “intrusive post-trial
inquiry” threaten the integrity of the very adversary process the right to counsel is meant to serve.

466 U.S. at 689-690; see also Harrington, 562 U.S. at 105 (cautioning that an ineffective assistance

of counsel claim could potentially function as a way to escape rules of waiver and forfeiture and
raise issues not presented at trial). Even under de noveo review, the standard for judging counsel’s
representation is a most deferential one. Harrington, 562 U.S. at 105. Unlike a later reviewing
court, the attorney observed the relevant proceedings; knew of materials outside the record; and
interacted with the client, opposing counsel, and the judge. Thus, the question is whether an
atforney’s representation amounted to incompetence under “prevailing professional norms,” not
whether it deviated from best practices or most common custom. Id. (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S.
at 690) (emphasis added).

The second, or “prejudice” prong of Strickland is rooted in the very purpose of the Sixth

Page 7 of 14




62

Amendment guarantee of counsel—to ensure a defendant has the assistance necessary to justify
reliance on the outcome of the proceeding. Id. at 691-92. In order to prove prejudice, an applicant
must demonstrate counsel’s deficient performance prejudiced the applicant such that “there is a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding
would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. A reasonable
probability is a probability “sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Strickland, 466
U.S. at 694, Thus, it is not enough “to show the errors had some conceivable effect” on the outcome
of the proceeding—counsel’s errors must be “so serious as to deprive the defendant of a fair trial.”
1d. at 687 (emphasis added).

The performance and prejudice standards, however, “do not establish mechanical rules;
[t]he ultimate focus of inquiry must be on the fundamental fairness of the proceeding whose result
is being challenged.” Strickland at 696. Moreover, “there is no reason for a court deciding an
ineffective assistance claim to approach the inquiry in the same order or even to address both
components of the inquiry if the defendant makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickiand at
697. The court “need not determine whether counsel’s performance was deficient before
examining the prejudice suffered by the defendant as a result of the alleged deficiencies. Id. If it is
easier to dispose of an ineffectiveness claim on the ground of lack of sufficient prejudice, the court
may evaluate the prejudice prong only. Id

Because the Sixth Amendment right to counsel also applies to a defendant entering a guilty

plea, Hill v. Lockhart extended the two-part Strickland test to challenge guilty pleas based on

ineffective assistance of counsel.” Hill, 474 U.S. 52; cf. Padilla, 559 U.S. at 373 (recognizing the
guilty plea process is a “critical phase of litigation” for purposes of the Sixth Amendment right to

effective assistance of counsel). A claim of ineffective assistance of guilty plea counsel requires
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the applicant present evidence satisfying two prongs: first, evidence that counsel’s performance
was deficient; and second, evidence that counsel’s deficient performance prejudiced the defendant
by causing him to plead guilty rather than go to trial. Hill, 474 U.S. 52.

The analysis of counsel’s performance under the first prong of Strickland remains
unchanged—the applicant must show counsel’s representation fell below the objective standard of

reasonableness demanded of attorneys in criminal cases. Hill, 474 U.S. at 58-59; accord

Thompson v. State, 340 S.C. 112, 1135, 531 S.E.2d 294, 296 (2000). An applicant alleging his plea
was induced by ineffective assistance of counsel must prove counsel’s advice to plead guilty was
not “within the competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.” Hill, 474 U.S. at 56.

The second, or “prejudice™ prong, however, “focuses on whether counsel’s constitutionally
inetfective performance affected the outcome of the plea process.” Id. at 58-59. Specifically, when
an applicant claims counsel’s deficient performance caused him to accept a plea, the applicant
“must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for [plea] counsel’s [alleged] errors, he
would not have pleaded guilty and would have insisted on going to trial.”” Id. at 59. This inquiry
“focuses on a defendant’s decision making” and does not turn on the outcome of a defendant’s
actual criminal proceeding or potential outcome had a defendant chosen to proceed to trial. Lee v.
United States, 582 U.S. _ , 137 S. Ct. 1958, 1966 (2017). However, an applicant must convince
the court that a decision to reject the plea bargain would have been rational under the
circumstances. Padilla, 559 U.S. at 372. The question here is whether the applicant, if correctly
informed of circumstances surrounding the plea, would have pleaded guilty—not whether counsel

would have still advised him or her to plead guilty. Turner v. State, 335 S.C. 382, 385,517 S.E.2d

442, 444 (1999).
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Response to Allegation Counsel Failed to File a Motion to Suppress

Applicant alleges Counsel failed to file a motion to suppress the drugs found in his
girlfriend’s vehicle following a traffic stop. This allegation is without merit. At Applicant’s guilty
plea, Counsel explained to the plea court he prepared a suppression motion that he was ready to
argue if the case proceeded to trial. (GP. Tr. p.15). Immediately following this, Applicant stated
he had nothing further to say. (GP. Tr. p.15). Furthermore, the Solicitor explained to the plea court
the potential weaknesses in the State’s case and the possible evidentiary issues. (GP. Tr. pp.8-9).
The Sclicitor explained that these issues, along with the age of the case, were factors in the State’s
decision to offer this very favorable plea deal. (GP. Tr. p.9). Applicant was clearly aware of the
evidentiary issues in the case prior to his guilty plea and that Counsel was prepared to argue the
suppression of the drugs had Applicant proceeded to trial. Therefore, Respondent denies this
allegation.

Response to Allegation Counsel Failed to File Direct Appeal

Counsel has a constitutionally imposed duty to consult with a defendant about an appeal
only when there is reason to think (1) that a rational defendant would want to appeal, or (2) that
this particular defendant reasonably demonstrated to counsel that he was interested in appealing.
Roe v. Flores-Ortega, .528 U.S. 470, 471 (2000). These elements are much harder to establish
when a conviction follows a guiity plea, because a plea both reduces the scope of appealable issues
and indicates that the defendant sought an end to judicial proceedings. Zd. [n addition, to prove
prejudice, an applicant must demonstrate a reasonable probability that he would have timely
appealed but for counsel’s deficiency. /d. Evidence that there were nonfrivolous grounds for
appeal or that the defendant promptly expressed a desire to appeal is highly relevant to this

determination. /d. at 472. Respondent denies this allegation.
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However, because this allegation arguably raises a question of fact that is not conclusively
refuted by the record, Respondent requests an evidentiary hearing solely on this issue. See Sharper
v. State, 279 S.C. 264,265,305 S.E.2d 247, 248 (1983) (*“Where an application for post-conviction
relief alleges specific instances of ineffective assistance of counsel which are not conclusively
refuted by the record before the lower court, a question of fact is raised which can only be resolved
by an evidentiary hearing.”).

MOTION TO DiSMISS BASED ON STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

If the Court denies the White v. State claim, Respondent submits the additional claims of
ineffective assistance of counsel in his application for Post-Conviction Relief should be summarily
dismissed for failure 10 comply with the filing procedures of the Uniform Post-Conviction
Procedure Act, S.C. Code Ann. sections 17-27-10 to -160. Section 17-27-45 requires as follows:

(A) An application for relief filed pursuant to this chapter must be
filed within one year after the entry of a judgment of conviction or
within one yvear after the sending of the remittitur to the lower court
from an appeal or the filing of the final decision upon an appeal,
whichever is later.

The South Carolina Supreme Court has heid that the statute of limitations shall apply to all

applications filed after July 1, 1996. Peloquin v. State, 321 S.C. 468, 469 S.E.2d 606 (1996). In

the present case, Applicant was convicted and sentenced on September 12, 2022, Based on Section
17-27-45(a), Applicant needed to file an application for post-conviction relief on or before
September 12, 2023. This Application was filed on February 26, 2024, after the expiration of the
statutory filing period.

A motion for summary judgment may properly be used to raise the defense of statute of

limitations. McDonnell v. Consolidated School District of Aiken, 315 S.C. 487, 445 S.E.2d 638

(1994). In addition, S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70(c) authorizes the Court to “grant a motion by
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either party for summary disposition of [an] application when it appears from the pleadings . . .
that there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a
matter of law.” Therefore, the Respondent requests that this Court summarily dismiss the
allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel for failure to file within the time mandated by the
Post-Conviction Procedure Act.

ANY FUTURE AMENDMENTS AND INVOCATION OF DISCOVERY PROCESS

Applicant must specify any claims he intends to raise at the PCR evidentiary hearing. All
claims should be made well in advance of the evidentiary hearing. Because Applicant has been
appointed an attorney, the attorney, and not Applicant, is the only individual authorized to file
amendments to this application. See Rule 11, SCRCP. Pro se filings will not be considered at the
PCR hearing. The State reserves the right to request that any amendments withheld until the last
minute be stricken because of undue prejudice to the State pursuant to Love v, State, 428 S.C. 231,
834 S.E.2d 196 (2019), or, alternatively, the State will request a continuance in the matter. Id.
at 245, 834 S.E.2d at 203 (Kittredge, J., dissenting) (“If, however, the proposed amendment . . .
would truly prejudice the State, the better course of action would be to continue the matter and
thus remove any possibility of prejudice resulting from the belated amendments.™}.

If Applicant fails to file a timely and responsive amended application setting forth specific
allegations for relief, the State reserves the right to move to dismiss this allegation or claim. S.C.

Code Ann. §§ 17-27-10 to -160: Rule 71.1, SCRCP; see also Rules 15(a)-(b), SCRCP. The State

reserves the right to request that any amendments withheld until the last minute be stricken because
of undue prejudice to the State. See Rule 15(a), SCRCP.
Pursuant to S.C, Code Ann. § 17-27-150, Applicant may not invoke formal discovery

processes to issue subpoenas or otherwise obtain discovery materials unless granted leave from
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the Court upon a showing of good cause. Furthermore, the State requests that all potential exhibits
and materials used to produce potential expert witness testimony be sent to the State well in
advance of the evidentiary hearing. The State reserves the right to request a continuance and
oppose witness testimony and exhibits that are withheld until the last minute resulting in undue
prejudice to the State.
GENERAL DENIAL
Each and every allegation contained within the application not expressly admitted,

qualified, or explained in this return is hereby denied.

[CONCLUSION PAGE FOLLOWS]
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CONCLUSION
WHEREFORE, Respondent respectfully requests an evidentiary hearing be held solely on
the issue of whether Applicant was denied his right to a direct appeal, and, if this allegation is
denied, Respondent moves to dismiss the remaining allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel

as untimely.

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

W. JEFFREY YOUNG
Chief Deputy Attorney General

DONALD J. ZELENKA
Deputy Attorney General

T. CRUISE MITCHELL
Assistant Attorney General

fice‘of the Attorney General
. Box 11549
olumbia, S.C. 29211

July (7 , 20
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF AIKEN

Jasper Jefferson, #389038,

Applicant,
V.
State of South Carolina,
Respondent.

69

) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
) FOR THE SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Case No.: 2024-CP-02-00479

APPLICANT’S AMENDED APPLICATION

N’ N N Nt N N Nt Nt

NOW COMES Applicant, Jasper Jefferson, amending his application filed February 26,

- -

2024. In addition to the allegations raised in his initial application, Mr. Jefferson, through PCR

Counsel, submits the following:

1. Applicant requests a belated appeal pursuant to White v. State.

2. Applicant requests this court grant equitable tolling concerning the remainer of his

issues because Applicant’s application was filed late because of COVID restrictions

at Manning Correctional Institution that lasted for several months and inhibited his

ability to access the law library. Applicant submits that he drafted and submitted the

application as soon as he could, given the limitations.

3. Ifthe Court grants equitable tolling, Applicant raises the following:

a. Ineffective assistance of counsel:

F——

—

i. Failure to file a motion to suppress that was already drafied before

Applicant pled.

ii. Failure to sufficiently communicate with Applicant.

iii. Failure to collaborate with Applicant concerning approach, defenses

and strategy.

iv. Failure to develop a valid trial strategy or defense.

v. Failure to move to withdraw the plea on the MY Junt 12 20 25

1 A%% 145

& GS.

ChnoalaPaoukdy one

Deputy Clerk
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vi. Failure to pursue a motion to dismiss challenging the amount of drugs
found, the stop itself, and the video footage.
vii. Failure to pursue a preliminary hearing.
b. Invalid plea:
i. Applicant was coerced into trial.
1. Counsel repetitively informed Applicant that if he did not
plead, he would received twenty-five years’ at trial.
2. Applicant was intimidated into pleading through introduction
of a second lawyer into the case.
ii. Applicant was erroneously informed he was pleading to a non-violent

offense.

Conclusion
Based upon the above, Mr. Jefferson requests that this Court grant relief, vacate the

convictions, and remand the case to the court of general sessions for a new trial.

LYV

S Chelsey F. Marto
Attorney at Law
S.C. Bar No. #104191

The Law Office of Chelsey F. Marto, LLC
P.O. Box 8795
Columbia, SC, 29201

(864)-404-5583
info@chelseymarto.com

For Applicant Jasper Jefferson

J\MC O‘ , 2025
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF AIKEN

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
FOR THE SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Jasper Jefferson, #389038, Case No.: 2024-CP-02-00479
Applicant,

V.

State of South Carolina,

Respondent.

Affidavit of Service by Mail

M’ N’ e S Nt Nt N Naet N Nt

1. 1 am the attorney for Applicant in the above-captioned matter.

2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the state of South Carolina and this is a
proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. Thave this day served a copy of the Amended Application on the above-captioned matter
on the following person by depositing the same in the United States mail with the proper
postage affixed thereto:

Office of the Attorney General
Attn: Zachary Jones, Esquire
PCR Division
P.0. Box 11549
Columbia, SC, 29211

QI /M~

Attorney for Applicant
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

COUNTY OF AIKEN 2024-CP-02-00479

JASPER L. JEFFERSON,
APPLICANT,
vs. TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,
RESPONDENT.

—_— Y — — — — — — — — — ~— ~— ~—

~

June 10, 2025
Aiken, South Carolina

BETEFORE:

THE HONORABLE DEBRA R. MCCASLIN, JUDGE.

A PPEARANTCE S:

CHELSEY F. MARTO, ESOQ.
Attorney for the Applicant

ZACHARY JONES, ESQ.
Attorney for the Respondent

Penny M. Johnson
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PROCEEDINGS

THE COURT: Call your case.

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, this is the matter of Jasper
Jefferson vs. The State of South Carolina, case number
2024-CP-02-479. My name is Zachary Jones for the State of
South Caroline. Mr. Jefferson is present as is his
attorney, Chesley Marto.

Mr. Jefferson was indicted during the October 2016 term
of the Aiken County Grand Jury for possession with intent to
distribute heroin, indictment number 2016-GS-02-02090,
trafficking methamphetamine 400 grams or more, that's
2016-GS-02-2091, possession with intent to distribute
cocaine, 2092, and unlawful conduct towards a child, 2093.

On September 12th, 2022, Mr. Jefferson pleaded guilty
to the lesser included offense of trafficking
methamphetamine 28 to 100 grams and as indicted on the
remaining charges before Judge Keesley. Pursuant to
negotiations between the State and Mr. Jefferson, Judge
Keesley sentenced Mr. Jefferson to seven years imprisonment
on each charge, all to run concurrently. Mr. Jefferson did
not file a direct appeal. This post-conviction relief
action was filed on February 26th, 2024.

With that, I will turn it over to Ms. Marto.

MS. MARTO: Judge, I have spoken with Mr. Jefferson

multiple times. He wants to go forward today.
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4
THE COURT: Mr. Jefferson, let me just make sure that
you understand. I know that this was a plea. You
understand -- I looked and you want me to dismiss your case?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: I can't do that.

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: That's not an option here. What can
happen, though, is that if you win your PCR and I agree with
you that your counsel was ineffective, you're just going to
get tried all over again with your original charges, which
was the trafficking, the CSC --

MR. JONES: It was child endangerment.

THE COURT: Child endangerment and there were several
other charges. All those charges will be brought back and
you'll either -- you would start the process all over again.
So I don't want you to think that I can dismiss your case
because I cannot.

THE WITNESS: I understand, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Now, I know you had the benefit of a
plea negotiation. I want to make sure that you understand
that that offer will not be brought back. You'll be giving
up that benefit. What would happen, again, should you
prevail is that all your charges will be brought back and
we'll start it all over again.

THE WITNESS: I understand, Your Honor.
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Jasper Jefferson - Direct by Ms. Marto

THE COURT: Okay. Knowing all that, you wish to go
forward?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: All right. Let's do it then.

Call your first witness.

MS. MARTO: Judge, I would call Mr. Jefferson.

JASPER JEFFERSON,

after being duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. MARTO:

Q Good afternoon, sir.

A Good afternoon.

0 So what were you charged with?

A I was charged with trafficking methamphetamine,

possession with intent to distribute heroin, possession of
cocaine, child endangerment. I think that's it.

0 You understand that trafficking 400 grams or more
carries a mandatory minimum of 25 years in prison, right?
A Yes, ma'am.

0 You understand that you received seven when you could
have received 25 or more?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 You understand that by the time the PCR appeal is
exhausted, you'll probably be out before your case is

totally resolved, you understand that, right?
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A Yes, ma'am.
Q You still want to go forward?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q So you're raising a direct appeal issue; is that
correct?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q And why did you want a direct appeal in this case?
A Well, I wanted -- at the time, I didn't agree with

taking the plea. I felt I was coerced in taking the plea.

I felt like I had -- I mean, that was, also, ineffective in
the case. He didn't explain to me everything. I don't feel
like he -- he didn't challenge my due process of the law.

He didn't challenge certain things that should have been
challenged in my case. And I will address those.

0 But, specifically, on direct appeal, it sounds like

your claims are ineffective assistance of counsel; is that

correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 So why did you want a direct appeal then?

A Well, I wanted to take my plea back right there. I

don't know if that's the same thing right there, so.

Q Okay. So you wanted counsel to move to withdraw the
plea?
A That's right. Actually, when I went to the county

jail, I had him to come to the county jail, my attorney, and
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I told him that I wanted to, but nothing was ever said of it
right there. He never got back in touch with me or

anything. I just ended up going to R&E and that was it.

Q You asked counsel to withdraw the plea that day?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q And did you ask him to file an appeal?

A I just asked him to withdraw the plea. Well, I

actually -- what it was was I had an attorney that handled
some civil matters for me. He came to see me at the county
after I got sentenced. When he heard about I had got
sentenced, he came to see me because he was handling some
civil matters for me, some estate matters. And I told him
-- he knows the attorney right there and I asked him to get
in touch with him and let him know that I wanted to take my
plea back. He came up there to -- then he came up there to
see me and I told him that I wanted to take my plea back. I
never heard from him again.

o) You filed your PCR application about five months after

the year that you get; is that correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And can you explain to the Court why you filed it so
late?

A Yes, ma'am. When I first came and I first got -- they

took me somewhere. When you go to R&E, you can't do

anything right there. You're not allowed to go anywhere.
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The first place they took me to was Goodman. Goodman didn't
have a library at all, so there was nothing I could do. I
stayed there for about six months, then Goodman closed down.

Then they sent me to Manning. When I went to Manning,
they had us on Covid restrictions, so they wouldn't let us
out. Then maybe a week or so right there, but they wouldn't
let us go. We had certain days you could go to the library,
but they wouldn't let us go because they had us on strict
Covid restrictions. So I was there about eight months.

As soon as I got to MacDougall, that's when I filed.
Because I was able to move around and I was able to go the
library. And I filed it as soon as I went to MacDougall
when I requested my records and stuff from my attorney. I
requested everything from the courts. And as soon as the
stuff got to me, that's when I filed.

0 So is it fair to say that but for the Covid

restrictions, you would have been able to file this on time?

A Yes, ma'am, I would have.

0 How many times did you talk to Mr. Screen?

A I talked to him a few times, maybe three or four times.
0 And what did you discuss during those meetings?

A Mainly, we discussed about me taking this plea. We

were saying that, okay, if I was to go and try this in trial
right there, they're going to give me 25 years. Mr. Screen

informed me that I was not going to get a jury of my peers
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if I go to trial. He said if I go, they're going to give me
25 years. You're going to get tried in Aiken County —-- when
you get tried in Aiken County, that's what's going to happen
right there. I don't want to see you get 25 years.

Well, my argument was right there, he was focusing on
my past and telling me that they're going to bring up my
past and was focusing on the amount of drugs that they found
in my car. And I'm asking him, I said, Well, what about the
stop? Why can't we focus on the stop itself? I'm saying
that the stop was illegal in itself right there. You know
what I mean? Why aren't you questioning the stop? Why
aren't you questioning the body cam that they don't have?
Why aren't you questioning the blue light camera that they
didn't have because the blue lights didn't come on when they
pulled me over. So they don't have the stop itself on film.
So you mean to tell me that I am going to get convicted
without them having the tape of them pulling me over?

He told me that they could convict me without pulling
me over -- I mean, without having a tape. I said, I
understand that they can, but will they? Will the Jjury find
me guilty beyond a reasonable doubt with them not having
video of them pulling me over after he said that he found
drugs in my car?

Now, keep in mind, also, the video that they have, when

the video does come on, the video -- he wrote the ticket at
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1:27 p.m. Now, I should have been allowed to go when he
gave us a ticket. I wasn't even driving the vehicle. So
when he wrote the ticket at 1:27, the camera of the car that
does come on, it's about 3:00 or 3:30. So I've been on the
side of the road all this time right there.

And the video that you're showing when the video does
come on is of the officer putting something in my car.

Okay, y'all have got a video of him putting something in the
car, but there's no video of him taking anything out. So I
said how can I be found guilty beyond a reasonable doubt
with this? I said, You mean to tell me that I can't have
one juror convinced of this? Is that not reasonable doubt
enough for not having -- for having to destroy the camera?
Because I can't argue what I'm talking about without y'all
having the video footage. So how am I supposed to make this
argument if there is no video footage?

Mr. Screen, also, informed me that, Mr. Jefferson,
constitutionally, you are right. He told me this. I said,
So you mean to tell me constitutionally, I'm right, but I'm
not going to get a fair trial and that I'm going to be found
guilty and the constitution is not going to work. This is
what he was telling me.

0 So you wanted counsel to move to dismiss the charges
based upon the lack of video evidence, correct?

A I wanted him -- the thing about it that I feel right
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there, I -- I feel like if he would have filed a motion to
suppress the evidence to challenge my due process with them
not having this right here, I feel like I wouldn't have been
here today.

MS. MARTO: Judge, if I may approach?

THE COURT: Sure.
BY MS. MARTO:
0 Can you identify this for me, please?
A Yes, ma'am. This is a motion that I got, motion to
dismiss or suppress the evidence from Mr. Screen. But I did
not receive this until after I requested my paperwork and
told him that I was going to try and go fight my case and go
back to court. But I didn't understand why he would send me
this after I've taken the plea. Why didn't you fight? This
only proves that he didn't do everything that he could
lawfully and ethically to try and help me to beat the case.
Because if he would have, he would have filed this, I think.
0 So you wanted counsel to file this, correct?
A Yes, ma'am.

MS. MARTO: We've move to enter this into evidence as
Applicant's Exhibit No. 1.

MR. JONES: Without objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It's admitted.

(WHEREUPON, Applicant's Exhibit No. 1 was admitted into

evidence.)
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BY MS. MARTO:
Q Now, do you feel like you and counsel had enough time

to discuss trial strategies and defenses in this case?

A I feel like we didn't take advantage of the time that
we had.
Q Was there have been a defense at trial that the stop

was unconstitutional in your opinion?

A Ma'am? Could you repeat that, please?

0 The defense you would have gone with at trial would
have been that the stop was unconstitutional; is that
correct?

A Yes, ma'am, I do feel that the stop was
unconstitutional. The search was unconstitutional. The
chain of command in which he took control of the situation

was unconstitutional.

0 Did you discuss all that with counsel?
A Yes, ma'am, I did discuss this with counsel.
0 Do you feel like counsel would have been prepared to

use those defenses at trial-?

A I felt like he -- I mean, I don't know what -- I felt
like he could have used them definitely. He definitely
could have used them. I feel like if it would have made it
to trial, I feel like I would have been able to convince a
jury just on the footage -- the missing footage alone by

them saying it was their fault that they dismissed this
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footage. I mean, this is something that's going to help me
because of what you all were saying. So I feel like that

would have helped me right there to convince a jury, at
least, somebody on the jury that I'm not guilty.

And I feel like if maybe this stuff would have been
filed right here, I probably would have had a chance to have
the evidence dismissed alone because -- maybe because of
that footage alone right there being missing right there
because of them saying what they did. And how do we know
that this is true what y'all are saying because there's no

way that we can prove that?

0 Did you want a preliminary hearing?

A Yes, I did want one, but I didn't get one.

Q How do you feel counsel was ineffective in that?

A By skipping it and not telling me.

0 Did you feel like it was your decision to plead or did

you feel like you were being forced into it?
A I felt like I was being forced into taking a plea. I
would have never taken that plea if I knew everything about

my due process that I know now. There's no way I would have

taken it.
0 Was Mr. Screen your second lawyer in this case?
A Yes, Mr. Screen was my second lawyer. My first lawyer

was Elmer Hatcher. He had the case for six years right

there and he had me convinced that he was going to have this
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case taken care of. He never did anything. He never filed
any paperwork at all. He retired in the middle of the case,
actually, and that's when he got Mr. Screen to help with the
case.
Q Now, did Mr. Screen do anything that would intimidate
you into pleading?
A No, he didn't do anything to intimidate me, but, I
mean, he just was telling me that I wasn't going to get a
fair trial and they were going to give me 25 years. We
never talked about making a plea. He told me that he would
go to trial, but they're going to give you 25 years. He had
me convinced that this is what's going to happen right here
if you go to trial. They're going to convict you. And I
just find it hard to believe without all this evidence.

I was thinking in my mind it only takes one person.
You mean to tell me you can't convince one? I mean, why
didn't we fight for this right here and file this paperwork
right here with the judge before you convinced me to take a
plea? Why didn't you exhaust all of your resources to help
me before you convinced me to take this plea? You
understand what I'm saying? I feel like we had more things
that we could have done before you coerced me and got me
right here to get in my mind there's no way you can get out
of this. Let's throw a right jab. Let's throw a left punch

first right here. Let's throw something. We ain't throwed
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nothing at them. We ain't throwed nothing at them. All he
did was convince me to take a plea.

Q Not to veer too far off the railroad tracks, but you
know that if you were take this case to trial and were to be
remanded, every single juror would have to find you not
guilty for you to be not guilty, otherwise, the jury would
be hung and you've have to have a retrial, you understand

that, right?

A I'd have to have a retrial?

Q Yeah.

A Okay.

0 Okay. So it's not just one juror. It's every single

one needs to find you not guilty, that's if we go back. You

understand that now?

A [Indiscernible].

Q Okay.

A Okay.

0 Now, did you think that you were pleading to a violent

or nonviolent offense?
A I thought I was pleading to a nonviolent offense.
THE COURT: Hang on one second.
THE COURT REPORTER: Did he say no or now?
THE WITNESS: Do what now?
THE COURT: To he understands that now.

THE WITNESS: Yes, now, yes, ma'am.
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THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MS. MARTO:

Q Does that impact your decision to go forward with the
PCR?

A No, ma'am.

Q Did you think you were pleading to a violent or

nonviolent offense?
A I thought I was pleading to a nonviolent offense. We
discussed things on a Friday. I was sentenced on a Monday.
And Mr. Screen and Mr. Hatcher, we met earlier and he said,
Well, what they're going to do is they're going to give you
seven years nonviolent and you're going to plead to such and
such. We're going to plead to this right here and we're
going to get you seven years nonviolent right there. And I
said, Okay, then I'm going to plead to the seven years
nonviolent, which means I'll do, like, three years off of it
or something a little less than that.

When Monday came, it changed. When I got the paperwork
-- I never read the plea right there. But when it was time
for me to go up before the Judge, he said you need to sign
this plea right here. I said, Wait a minute, what's that?
It's going to be 85 percent. I said, Wait a minute, you
told me that it was going to be nonviolent. 85 percent
violent, that's all we can do, so we're going to have to

have the 85 percent violent. I'm like, But you told me
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something different and now that I get here, it's 85 percent
violent.

It's like they were rushing me and I didn't have time
to read it or look at it or anything. I was at the point to
where I felt like -- I mean, I'm getting ready -- you know,
if you're getting ready to go and get into a fight with
somebody and you've got somebody that's supposed to have
your back, they don't have it, so you don't have anything to
do but surrender. So I'm feeling like man, I don't have a
dog in the fight right now. This is all I can do. You know
what I mean? They doing this to me right here now, so I
don't know what else to do. I can't go up here and try to
fight now. I felt like my hands were tied then.

0 So if you had been told that it was going to be a
violent offense from the beginning, would you have pled?

A No, ma'am.

0 And are there any other issues that we haven't already
talked about that you wish to raise today at your PCR
hearing?

A I just feel like -- I mean, I just want the Court to
know that I never would have took this plea until I've had
-— until I felt like we have exhausted all of our resources
to try to get this case dismissed right here with the
evidence that they had right there, you know. I feel like

there was just a lot of stuff that could have been
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challenged right there that wasn't challenged by my
attorneys. And I, at least, would have felt -- you know
what I mean, I would have felt better right here about this
situation if he would have fought a little bit more, you
know what I mean, challenged this stuff right here because I
feel like this stuff needs to be challenged if they don't
have the video footage right here. That's one of the main
things that was in my file that I felt like needed to be
challenged right there. You got video of him putting
something in my car, but you don't have anything of him
taking it out. That should have been the main thing
challenged.

MS. MARTO: Nothing further.

MR. JONES: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to let you step down then,
Mr. Jefferson.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, ma'am.

MS. MARTO: We call Jerry Screen.

THE COURT: Mr. Screen, come on up, sSir.

JERRY SCREEN,

after being duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE WITNESS: My name is Jerry M. Screen, Sr.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. MARTO:

0 Good afternoon, Mr. Screen. You represented Mr.
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Jefferson, right?
A I did.
Q When did you come in on the case?
A Well, his case had gotten kind of elderly by the time I

got in. He was represented by Mr. Hatcher. And I came in,

to put it bluntly, on a search and rescue mission.

Q Would you define what you mean by search and rescue
mission?
A When I got in and talked to Mr. Hatcher, I realized he

was representing a client that was in very deep waters,
faced a lot of jeopardy. So I wanted to see if there was
any possibility of rescuing him from this situation. A good
criminal defense lawyer is like an NFL quarterback, he's
always looking down field for six, but he'll take what he
can get if he can't get it down the field. So in other
words, I wanted to save him, if possible, from that time
that was facing him or, at least, do whatever I could to

whittle away at the State's case and cut down on his time.

0 So are you the one that got the negotiated seven-year
offer?

A You better tell me that again because I'm not sure.

0 Okay. Do you know if it was you or Mr. Hatcher that

got the seven-year offer that he, ultimately, pled to?
A Mr. Hatcher had been in this case long enough where he

and the solicitor had irritated each other to some extent.
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So they weren't making any -- weren't getting any traction.
Now, he's under an order from the administrative judge to
get moving this case. 1It's on a list of cases that's got to
be tried or disposed of. So he doesn't have the luxury of
years. Look at when it came up, in 'l6. Remember, Covid.
So it sat on the docket for a good while.

Q Did Mr. Jefferson request that you file an appeal in
this case?

A I have no recollection of him requesting that.

0 Do you recall if he asked you to withdraw the plea the
day he pled?

A I do not, ma'am. If any question of appeal would have
come up, as I look back at it, we got seven years in our
pocket and we're facing mandatory time, that's like kicking
a dog to wake him up to bite you.

0 So you just wanted him to take the plea and run; is

that fair to say?

A Take the seven.
0 How many times did you meet with him, do you recall?
A A number of times, ma'am, a number of times. I am a

plain-spoken lawyer and I'm very firm. And if I made any
error, it was because I was zealous enough to try to save
his life to try to get him back home to his kids and his
wife in a reasonable time.

0 Did you tell him he would lose the trial if he took
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Jerry Screen - Direct by Ms. Marto

this case to trialv?

A I talked to him about a lot of things, ma'am. He was
-- and he may have had reason to be, but he was somewhat
perturbed with one of the officers in this case. That
officer knew him and he knew the officer. He didn't like
him and I don't think that officer cared much about my
client. But he did not believe that officer was a
straight-shooting fair guy and he -- that, perhaps,
interfered with his ability to allow his reasoning to outrun
his aggravation for the situation.

0 You ever tell him he wouldn't get a fair trial due to
the officer?

A I talked to him about the demographics of trial, ma'am.
I've tried enough cases here in Aiken County, including a
death penalty. I know what kind of jury you're going to
draw. I know about the educational level. I know about
whether they work in factories or whether they work in the
system. Because I know that, I can tell my client pretty
much what kind of jury he's likely to face.

0 So you were worried about the people from Aiken County
and the way they might judge him; is that fair?

A I wasn't worried about it. I was simply advising him
of some factors surrounding a decision to go forward given
all the circumstances we were aware of at that point.

0 Did you ever tell him that the police might tell
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Jerry Screen - Direct by Ms. Marto

falsehoods on the stand at times?

A The courtroom is fertile ground for lying.

Q And so there was the motion to suppress that you
drafted in this case in preparation for trial, correct?

A Ma'am, I had the pleasure some years ago to use a group
out of the University of Virginia Law School. It's called
the National Legal Research Group. I have been successful
in federal court and state court with their help and
guidance with motions and memorandums, you name it.

I had them prepare such a document on behalf of my
client, which he paid for. I did not file that motion. I
played poker kind of with the solicitor with it. I met with
her on, at least, three or four occasions and made her very
aware that I had such -- was armed with such a motion. And
we talked about a number of cases that I believe captured
the facts of this case. Rodrigues vs. United States and
Williams that came behind that, and the DC Court of Appeals
had a case out there, then South Carolina Fourth Circuit
came out with Junkins (ph).

So I wanted to make her aware that this was an iffy
situation even for her, that she didn't have all the cards,
even though I knew she had the best hand in my opinion. So
that is the reason why he sits there now with seven years
instead of 30.

0 If you went to trial, would you have filed the motion?
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A I didn't have to file it. I told him I wasn't going to
file it. I was going to use it to persuade the State to
back off of us. Once the motion was filed -- we had a

circuit judge, a seasoned circuit judge then, William
"Billy" Keesley, and I've tried a lot of cases in front of
him. If we file that motion and have a hearing, my words to
him were if we win this motion, you're going home and having
supper with the family. If we lose it, excuse my language,
you're on a bobsled to hell.

0 So you discussed trial strategy and defenses with Mr.
Jefferson, right?

A Yeah, I talked to Mr. Hatcher and all. But as we
approached the hour of trial and they put seven years on the
table, I firmly sit here today and tell you that I firmly
recommended he take that deal. And I have not changed one
iota in these years.

0 Do you recall if you told him it was a violent or a
nonviolent offense?

A We talked about it, I'm sure. Mr. Hatcher talked to
him about it and I talked to him. He had priors, so,
basically, I remember telling him that the legislature in
South Carolina had already systematically set up certain
cases as violent. And if you fall in that violent category,
you got 85 percent. If it's nonviolent, you probably drop

back to 65. I am convinced as I sit here that he had fully
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Jerry Screen - Cross by Mr. Jones

been told about it and that when he stepped before Judge
Keesley, I told Judge Keesley I recommend he take the deal,
the plea. And Judge Keesley queried him as carefully as you
would want the Defendant to be queried. He answered all the
right questions. He got the seven years. End of story.

Q You became involved in this case long after the

preliminary hearing would have taken place, right?

A Was I involved at that point?

Q The preliminary hearing probably happened long before
A That was well before I got in it.

0 So that would have been Mr. Hatcher?

A That was Mr. Hatcher.

0 Is there a reason why you didn't pursue a motion to

dismiss the charges like Mr. Jefferson requested or is that
something you would have done at trial?
A That's not something that would have come up by the
time I got in. If they wanted to file a motion like that,
they would have filed it. Frankly, looking at it, a motion
like that wasn't going anywhere fast.

MS. MARTO: One moment, Your Honor.

(Pause.)

MS. MARTO: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Anything from the State?

CROSS-EXAMINATION
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BY MR. JONES:

Q I think y'all went over most of the stuff I was going
to ask, but just to clarify a couple of points. Your
recommendation to Mr. Jefferson was just that, a

recommendation, correct? You didn't command him or tell him

A It was a firm recommendation based upon a lot of years
of trial experience in the criminal courts of this county
and this state. So it was a hard recommendation. It was
not slow pitched, it was a fast ball.

0 Nevertheless, he was the one who, ultimately, made the
decision to --

A It was his call. I'm going home no matter what.

0 Yes, sir. Did you tell Mr. Jefferson he was
constitutionally in the right, but that he would lose at
trial because he wouldn't get a fair trial?

A No, sir. I told him we were on the tip of the spear
when it comes to the constitution. That every time I dig up
a case, it might lean one way. The Fourth Circuit came
along in 2021 and cleaned up Rodrigues and everything.

His primarily complaint was about the stop, the traffic
stop and things that happened after that. And that was
something that the court coined a phrase called de minimis,
which means once you stop -- if you're an officer and you

stop him for at traffic stop, you can keep him there no
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Jerry Screen - Cross by Mr. Jones

longer than it takes to carry out the function or purpose
for which you stopped him. You cannot unduly delay the
stop. I found no evidence of that in this case.
Q In fact, wasn't there evidence that the drug dog
arrived pretty much immediately after --
A He was on scene.
Q On scene, all right. Nevertheless, you were able to
use that motion to sort of hold that over the solicitor to
argue for a lower —--
A Gave the solicitor plenty of credit. They've seen me
in this courtroom and the courtrooms in that old courthouse,
death penalty and all. A good boxer can fix it. If you
can't fight, you can't fix.
0 And just to clarify something I think Ms. Marto asked
you about earlier, when you took over the case, was the
seven-year offer -- had that already been made or did it
come after you took over the case?
A Oh, no, that did not come for a while after I got in.
0 I thought that's what you said, but I wanted to make
sure that was clear.
A Yes.

MR. JONES: Thank you, Mr. Screen. I think that's all
I have for you.

THE COURT: Any redirect?

MS. MARTO: No redirect.
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THE COURT: Mr. Screen, I've got just a couple of
questions.

THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

EXAMINATION

BY THE COURT:
Q How long have you been practicing law?
A This year 50 years.
Q And you haven't retired yet, I know, because I saw you
in my courtroom in Lexington, have you?
A That's correct.
Q Let me ask you something, because he had a trafficking,
what he originally had. Was that a mandatory 25 years?
A It was a mandatory 25.
Q 85 percent time, right?
A Yes, ma'am.
0 And then you had it reduced to the lower level of
trafficking that carried the seven to 307
A Seven to 30.
0 Seven to 30. Meaning that the Judge couldn't give him

less than seven?

A That's right.

Q And that is what the offer was, was seven. Normally,
judges on a third offense being dropped down to a second
tier don't even go to the low end. I assume you've found

that out in your experience in practicing law?
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Jerry Screen - Examination by the Court 2
A Absolutely.
Q And then he was talking about this wvideo, that nobody
would convict him of it because there was no video. Was
there a video?
A Well, when they stopped him, they supposed to have a
video. Somehow during this period of Covid, that video was

lost or erased unintentionally. I explained to him about
the video, that we have to demonstrate bad faith on the part
of the police in erasing the video and that whatever was on

it was exculpatory. I'm convinced he knew it and I think he

knows it now. He's smart enough he knows.
0 So on your search and rescue mission, the best you
could have done for him is the seven years. That's what

most criminal defense lawyers would call a really good deal?
A I thought it was till I got the notice to come here.

THE COURT: That's all I have, Mr. Screen. Thank you.

MR. SCREEN: Thank you, Judge. It's wonderful to see
you.

THE COURT: You, too. Take care.

I'm going to excuse Mr. Screen unless there's any
objection.

MS. MARTO: ©No objection.

MR. JONES: ©No objection.

The State has no witnesses, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.
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All right. I'm going to take this matter under
advisement. I'll let y'all know.

Thank you.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

101

30

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

COUNTY OF AIKEN )

I, PENNY M. JOHNSON, Official Court Reporter for the
Second Judicial Circuit of the State of South Carolina, do
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate, and
complete Transcript of Record of the proceedings had and the
evidence introduced in the hearing of the captioned case,
relative to appeal, in the Court of Common Pleas for Aiken
County, South Carolina, on the 10th day of June, 2025.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel,

nor interest to any party hereto.

October 20, 2025

Penny M. Johnson
Official Court Reporter




























110

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF AIKEN FOR THE SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
State of South Carolina,

Respondent, Case No. 2024-CP-02-00479

Vs.

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

Jasper Jefferson,
Defendant.

This matter comes before the Court by way of a post-conviction relief (PCR) action
commenced by Jasper Jefferson (Applicant) on February 26, 2024. The State made its return and
partial motion to dismiss on July 25, 2025. In addition to the pleadings in this action, this Court
had before it a copy of the Aiken County Clerk of Court records, the Applicant’s SCDC records,

and the transcript from the Applicant’s plea on September 12, 2022.

On June 10, 2025, this Court convened an evidentiary hearing in the Aiken County
Courthouse. Applicant was present at the hearing and was represented by Chelsey Marto, Esquire.
Cruise Mitchell, Esquire, and Zachary Jones, Esquire of the South Carolina Attorney General’s
Office were present on behalf of the State. Applicant and his former Counsel, Jerry M. Screen, Sr.,

Esquire both testified at the hearing.

After hearing the testimony at the PCR hearing and a full review of the record, this Court
finds Applicant’s allegations are without merit. Therefore, for the reasons discussed below, this

Court denies relief and hereby dismisses this action with prejudice.
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PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant
to orders of commitment from the Aiken County Clerk of Court. During its October 2016 term,
the Aiken County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for possession with intent to distribute heroin
(2016-GS-02-02090); trafﬁcking methamphetamine, 400 grams or more (2016-GS-02-02091);
possession with intent to distribute cocaine (2016-GS-02-02092); and unlawful conduct towards a
child (2016-'GS-02-02093).»The case was prosecuted by Elizabeth B. Young, Esquire, of the

Second Circuit Solicitor’s Office. Applicant was represented by Jerry M. Screen Sr., Esquire.

On September 12, 2022, following a thorough colloquy, Judge Keesley found Applicant
entered a plea knowingly, voluntarily, and intelligently. Applicant plead guilty to the lesser
included offense of trafficking methamphetamine, 28-100 grams, and as indicted on the remaining
charges before the Honorable William P. Keesley. Pursuant to negotiations between the State and
Applicant, Judge Keesley sentenced Applicant to seven years' imprisonment on each charge, with

those sentences to run concurrently. Applicant did not file a direct appeal.

FACTS PRESENTED AT THE GUILTY PLEA HEARING

The following summary was taken, verbatim, from the Solicitor's recitation of the facts at
Applicant's guilty plea hearing:

On June 21, 2016, Deputy Puckett and Deputy Bozark Aiken County Sherriff's Office were
running radar. The location on Highway 19 here in Aiken County, they observed vehicle
that was speeding. Deputy Bozark got behind it to initiating a traffic stop. He got the driver
who was Mr. Jasper Jefferson's wife. Out of the vehicle she was acting very nervous.

Deputy Puckett pulled up shortly after the initial stop. He is a canine deputy and Deputy
Bozark indicated he wanted him to go ahead and run the dog around the car based on the
driver's demeanor. He did do that, he got alerted by sitting outside the driver's door while
he was doing that. Deputy Argine noticed that Mr. Jefferson, who was in the front passenger

Page 2 of 12
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seat, was extremely nervous to the point where he was well - - he just noticed that he was
very nervous and his demeanor was also unusual.

So, the dog alerted. They did do a search vehicle in a UPS mailing package in the passenger
side floorboard where Mr. Jefferson seated. They found a large quantity of what appeared
to be amphetamine, a pill bottle that contained three small baggies of a white powder
substance along with digital scales and quantity of United States currency. The items were
sent off to be tested and came back. Methamphetamine was positive for methamphetamine,
574.46 grams. Cocaine was positive, 1.09 grams. Heroin was positive, 3.13 grams. When
we started getting this case ready and looking at it numerous years ago, we discovered that
Deputy Bozark's camera had rolled off the system and was not preserved initially. Deputy
- - and additionally, Deputy Puckett's camera started well into the traffic stop where all the
necessary items or incidents had already taken place off camera.

And this was before either deputy had been issued a body-worn camera. So, we had some
problems with that at the very beginning of the case. Additionally, Mr. Jefferson did make
some incriminating statements on the scene. He had not been advised of his Miranda rights,
so we're not going to be able to bring those in at trial.

His son was in the backseat of the car and both parents were arrested on the scene for long
conduct as well as these drug charges. His case just kind of stayed in the back of my roster
because he was out on the line. However, then he was rearrested in June of this year for
driving the wrong way in this highway and appeared to be under the influence as well as
possessing what appear to be cocaine. Those charges will be no pause as a result of this
plea.

We take the State's negotiations; this came up on our 1095 docket. We begin earnestly
trying to resolve it in addressing the issues that the case had. We made a negotiated seven
year offer for all these four charges to run concurrently. If Your Honor will accept it, the
law enforcement is in support of the negotiation. This was - - we were preparing this
actually for trial all last week. When we went and reviewed the evidence, we realized that
the EPS mailer bag that was mentioned in the deputy's report actually had Mr. Jefferson's
name on it. So, that was another incriminating factor that I think led him to ultimately take
this plea here today.

Your Honor, he does have a prior record in South Carolina in 1990, conviction of
possession of cocaine. The remainder of all his convictions are federal convictions. In 1992,
narcotics and conspiracy, 1993, conspiracy of cocaine with intent to distribute. 1999,
distribution of cocaine as well as violation of supervised release and additional conviction
to repeat with cocaine 1999. Based on all the factors going into the case since age, we ask
that, Your Honor, accept the negotiation and sentence him to a seven-year active sentence.

CURRENT APPLICATION

In his application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges claims for:
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1. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

a.

C.

“Counsel failed to file (as requested) a “Motion” to Suppress evidence for drugs
seized from vehicle and have charge(s) dismissed. Had Counsel file the requested
motion the outcome of the proceeding against me (Defendant) would have been
different. Instead, Counsel threatened and coerced me (Defendant) into a plea
arrangement or | would have received a much greater sentence. Counsel failed to
adequately address the merits of the issue of probable cause, search and seizure of
a speedy traffic violation and challenge the State’s (Officer’s) destruction of Body
camera and Officer’s car dash camera footage ([sic] or the tape) during the
beginning of the Traffic stop. Per Statute 56-5-2953 Video recording should begin
when Blue light activate, to include beginning to the end. Failure to hear this video
footage, alone is enough to-have charges dismissed. Counsel representation fell
below an objective standard of reasonableness. There is a reasonable probability
that, but for the Counsel’s unprofessional error, the result of the proceeding would
have been different.”

“Violation of Professional Conduct, Rule 407. Counsel has a responsibility to abide
by requests and -decisions by his Client concerning the objective’s of his
representation (Rule 1.2 Scope of Representation) regarding that Counsel file a
Motion to Suppress Evidence and dismiss charges. Rule 1.4 Communication,
Counsel shall consult with his Client (Defendant) as to the means by which they
are to be pursued and Counsel should take action per Client’s request. Rule 1.3
Diligence. A Lawyer should purse a matter on behalf of a client despite opposition,
obstruction or personal inconvenience and take whatever lawful and ethical
measures are required to vindicate a client’s cause. Defendant’s attorney was
ineffective because he failed to follow the Rules of Professional Conduct.
“Counsel’s ineffective assistance rendered the Guilty Plea involuntary.”

2. 14™ Amendment (Due Process)

a.

“My (Defendant) Due Process rights was violated as the result of the exculpatory
evidence being destroyed Defendant was pulled over for speeding however the
Report states that immediately a second officer arrived at or about 45 secs to one
minute and deployed a K-9 to the passenger of the vehicle being the Defendant.
Based on the Report, Law Enforcement abandoned its traffic stop and shifted
attention entirely to a Narcotic’s investigation. At this point the traffic stop was
prolonged and Defendant didn’t feel he was free to leave after a citation was issued.
Defendant refused consent to search however Officer proceeded anyway where
narcotic’s and possessions was seized. During the search the Defendant recognized
the Officer remove these monies and narcotics to his vehicle. Upon arrival of a
“Drug Task Force Unit”, the Officer was advised to put monies, narcotics back in
Defendant’s car. This is clearly a error in chain of custody. To prove the Defendant’s
Due Process was in violation, the Defendant sought to review dashcam footage and
body cam footage from Officer’s on the scene to learn officer’s did not turn on his
dashcam until after the narcotics investigation was essentially complete. Also other
dashcam footage was deleted by Law Enforcement from its server before Defendant
could review the footage.

3. 4™ Amendment Violation
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a. “4™ Amendment, search and seizure rending evidence of the seizure of the alleged
drugs is inadmissible. Accordingly, evidenced seized in violation of the fourth (4)
Amendment must be excluded. This exclusion is accomplished through the
exclusionary rule, ‘a judicially created remedy designed to safeguard Fourth
Amendment rights generally through its deterrent effect, rather than a personal
constitutional right of the party aggrieved. By excluding the wrongfully obtained
evidence, Courts effectively compel’ respect for the constitutional guarantee in the
only effectively available way by removing the incentive to disregard it. Finally,
regarding K-9 deployed dog sniff. This not an ordinary incident of a traffic stop.
See Rodriguez v. U.S. (2015). As a result, and because the sniff is intended to detect
ordinary criminal wrongdoing, ‘it may not prolong the duration of the traffic stop
absent consent of those detained or reasonable suspicion of criminal activity. See
U.S. v. Perez (2022). Absent consent or reasonable suspicion, the critical-question,
then, is not whether dog sniff occurs before or after the office issues a ticket... but
whether conducting the sniff prolongs (adds time) to the stop.

4. White v. State Claim

a. “My attorney failed to respond to my request in court and after.”

b. “I did not understand my Due Process and was coerced into a plea.”

c. “After sentence I requested that my attorney that I wanted to give back the Plea and
wanted a Jury Trial.”

5. Applicant also alleges that he did not get a preliminary hearing, that he was coerced into a
plea, and did not realize he was charged with a violent crime that carried 85 percent time.

Applicant requests relief as follows:
“Case to be dismissed.”
Before this Court are the records of the Aiken County Clerk of Court regarding the subject
convictions, Applicant’s records from the South Carolina Department of Corrections, the plea

“transcript, and the records of the current action.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

An applicant may seek PCR upon the following types of allegations:

1. That the conviction or the sentence was in violation of the Constitution of the United States

or the Constitution or laws of this State;

2. That the court was without jurisdiction to impose sentence;
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3. That the sentence exceeds the maximum authorized by law;

4. That there exists evidence of material facts, not previously presented and heard, that

requires vacation of the conviction or sentence in the interest of justice;

5. That his sentence has expired, his probation, parole or conditional ‘release unlawfully

revoked, or he is otherwise unlawfully held in custody or other restraint; or

6. That the conviction or sentence is otherwise subject to collatérall’gltftaCIg, upon any ground.
of alleged error heretofore available under any common law, statutory or other writ, motion,

petition, proceeding or remedy].]

S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-20(A).

INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, GENERALLY

The Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution guarantee
Applicant, like all other defendants, the right to effective assistance of counsel. Strickland v.
Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984). The reviewing court applies the two-part test outlined in
Strickland to determine whether counsel’s conduct “was so [ineffective] as to require reversal” of
the applicant’s convigtion or sentence.- Id. at 687. First, the applicant must show that counsel’s
performance was deﬁ'cient; and second, that tl;e deficient performance prejudiced the applicant.

Id. at 668.

In order to prove deficient performance, the applicant must show counsel’s representation
fell below an objective standard of “reasonableness under prevailing professional norms.” Cherry
v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 117-18, 386 S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989). Strickland, however, “does not

guarantee perfect representation[—Jonly a ‘reasonably competent attorney.”“ Harrington v.
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Richter, 562 U.S. 86, 110 (2011) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687). Just as there is “no
expectation that competent counsel will be a flawless strategist or tactician, an attorney may not

be faulted for a reasonable miscalculation or lack of foresight or for failing to prepare for what

appear to be remote possibilities.” Id., see also Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. 1, 8 (2003) (*The
Six_th Amendment guarantees reasonable competence, not perfect advocacy judged with the benefit

of hindsight.”). Rather, Counsel’s performance, even if “far from exemplary,” will only be found

deficient if “rio competeﬁt 1awYer” would have acted the same way. Dunn v. Reeves, 594 U.S.

731, 739 (2021).

| To satisfy the second, or “prejudice,” prong of Strickland, an applicant must demonstrate
counsel’s deficient performance prejudiced him such that “there is a reasonable probability that,
but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different.”
Cherry, 300 S.C. at 11718, 386 S.E.2d at 625. A reasonable probability is a probability “sufficient
to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 694. In the context of a guilty
plea, the applicant must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's alleged

errors, he would not have pleaded guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart,

474 U.S. 52, 59 (1985).

Surmounting Strickland’s high bar is never an easy task, and the strong societal interest in

finality has “special force with respect to convictions based on guilty pleas.” Lee v. United States,

- 582 U.S. 357, 368—69 (2017) (internal citations and quotation marks omitted); cf. Hill, 474 U.S.
at 58 (“[R]equiring a ‘prejudice’ showing from defendants who seek to challenge the validity of
their guilty pleas on the ground of ineffective assistance of counsel ‘will serve the fundamental

interest in the finality of guilty pleas.””).
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FINDINGS OF FACT & CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This Court has reviewed the testimony presented at the PCR evidentiary hearing, observed
the witnesses, passed upon their credibility, and weighed their testimony accordingly. After hearing
the testimony presented and considering the legal arguments of counsel, as well as the records
incorporated by way of the State’s return, this Court rules that the Applicant’s claims are without
merit. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-80, this Court makes the following findings of facts

and conclusions of law based upon all of the probative evidence presented.

EVIDENTIARY HEARING

The Applicant testified that he did not get a preliminary hearing, and that he was coerced
into taking a plea. He also testified that he felt the stop and search were unconstitutional and that
he could have convinced a jury that he was not guilty because of a missing tape. Because of this,
he wanted his Counsel to file a Motion to Suppress, and he believed that the case would have been
dismissed. Applicant further testified that he thought he was pleading to a non-violent offense but
then contradicted himself by admitting that his Counsel told him that it was a violent offense and

85% time. Lastly, Applicant testified that he wanted Counsel to withdraw the plea or appeal.

Mzr. Screen (Counsel), who the Court found credible, testified that he was not the original
counsel on the case and that the preliminary hearing was a matter well before he became involved
in the case. Counsel testified that he came in on a “search and rescue” mission.” Counsel testified
that he did draft a Motion to Suppress, but he never filed it and instead used it as a trial strategy to

persuade the State to make the deal of 7 years active time. Counsel testified that he firmly
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recommended Applicant take the deal because he could end up doing 25 years had he went to trial

and was convicted. Further, Counsel] testified that there was no evidence being unduly kept at the

scene. In addition, he testified that there was no video because it was erased during COVID

unintentionally and they must demonstrate bad faith on the part of erasing the video. Lastly,
Counsel testified that he has no recollection of Applicant ever requesting to withdraw the plea or

appeal.

ALLEGATION COUNSEL FAILED TO FILE MOTION TO SUPPRESS

This Court finds that Counsel did not coerce or threaten the Applicant to take the plea deal.
Applicant’s representation did not fall beneath the standard of “reasonableness under prevailing

professional norms.” Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 117-18, 386 S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989).

Therefore, Applicant has failed to prove prong one that Counsel’s representation was deficient.

Further, this Court finds that there is not a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s
alleged errors, he would not have not pleaded guilty and would have insisted on going to trial.
Applicant knew that he could have been facing 25 years had he proceeded to trial. Judge Keesley

found that he entered the plea knowingly, voluntarily, and intelligently. Therefore, Applicant has

- failed to prove prong two that the outcome would have been different..

Accordingly, this allegation is DENIED.
ALLEGATION COUNSEL FAILED TO FILE DIRECT APPEAL

Applicant alleges Counsel failed to file a direct appeal on his behalf. This Court finds this

allegation is without merit.
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Counsel has a constitutionally imposed duty to consult with a defendant about an appeal
when there is reason to think (1) that a rational defendant would want to appeal, or (2) that this

particular defendant reasonably demonstrated to counsel that he was interested in appealing. Roe

v. Flores-Ortega, 528 U.S. 470, 471 (2000). These elements are much harder to establish when a
conviction follows a guilty plea, because a plea both reduces the scope of appealable issues and
indicates that the defendant sought an end to judicial proceedings. Id. In addition, to prove
prejudice, an applicant must demonstrate a reasonable probability that he would have timely
appealed but for counsel’s deficiency. Id. Evidence that there were nonfrivolous grounds for
appeal or that the defendant promptly expressed a desire to appeal is highly relevant to this

determination. Id. at 472.

At the plea hearing, Judge Keesley found that Applicant entered a plea knowingly,
voluntarily, and intelligently. Since Applicant pled guilty, it indicates that he wanted to end judicial
proceedings, and that a rational defendant would not want to appeal. Therefore, Applicant has

failed to prove the first element of the Roe test.

At the PCR evidentiary hearing, Applicant testified that he wanted Counsel to withdraw
the plea, but never asked Counsel to file an appeal. Applicaﬁt testified that he was five months late
on appeal because he was at Goodman Cortectional Institute, then transferred to Manhing
Correctional Institute where he was on lockdown due to COVID-19 restrictions. Counsel testified
that he has no recollection of Applicant ever requesting him to appeal. Therefore, this Court finds
that Applicant has failed to prove the second element of the Roe test because he never demonstrated

to Counsel that he was interested in appealing.

Accordingly, this allegation is DENIED.
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ALL OTHER ALLEGATIONS

As t(; any and all allegations raised in the application or at the hearing in this matter and
not specifically addressed in this order, this Court finds Applicant failed to present any evidence
regarding such allegations. Accordingly, this Court finds those claims were voluntarily waived and
abandoned, and those claims are therefore DENIED and dismissed with prejudice. S.C. Code Ann.
§ 17-27-90.

In .the alternative, Applicant filed an untimely PCR Application. Section 17-27-45 (A)
states:

(A) An application for relief filed pursuant to this chapter must be filed within one year
after the entry of a judgment of conviction or within one year after the sending of
the remittitur to the lower court from an appeal or the filing of the final decision
upon an appeal, whichever is later. '

Applicant needed to file an application for post-conviction relief on or before September
12, 2023. This Application was filed on February 26, 2024, after the expiration of the statutory

filing period.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes Applicant has not established
any constitutional violations or deprivations that would require this Court to grant his
application for post-conviction relief. This Coﬁrt finds that Counsel was not deﬁéient in any
manner, nor was Applicant prejudiced by Counsel’s representation. This Court finds Applicant
freely, knowingly, and voluntarily pleaded guilty. Therefore, this Court denies relief on all
allegations and dismisses this PCR action with prejudice.

Applicant must file and serve a notice of appeal within thirty days from PCR counsell’s

receipt of written notice of entry of judgment to secure the appropriate appellate review
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pursuant to Rule 203, SCACR. Applicant has a right to appellate counsel’s assistance in

seeking review of the denial of PCR. Austin v. State, 305 S.C. 453, 409 S.E.2d 395 (1991).

Rule 71.1(g), SCRCP, provides that if Applicant wishes to seek appellate review, PCR counsel
must serve and file a notice of appeal on Applicant’s behalf. Applicant is directed to Rule 243,

SCACR, for appropriate procedures for appeal.
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. The application for post-conviction relief be denied and dismissed with prejudice; and

2. Applicant must remain in the custody of the State.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this g day of

- DEBBA R. MCCASLIN
v Pregiding Judge

ﬂ/‘-/IQQ/V\') , South Carolina
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